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W ho W e A r e

Founded in 1977, Kennedy Wilson is a real estate operating company that provides a diversified array of real estate
investments and services in the U.S. and Japan. The company has grown from a small auction business into a vertically
integrated real estate operating company headquartered in Beverly Hills, CA with approximately 300 employees and
21 offices throughout the U.S. and Japan. Kennedy Wilson is an industry leader, with assets under management of
$6.8 billion (including assets owned through joint ventures and third-party management assignments) and managing
over 40 million square feet of office, retail, industrial and residential properties throughout the U.S. and Japan.

co m m i t m e nt
Kennedy Wilson’s operations are defined by two core business practices: KW Investments and KW Services.
KW Investments includes fund management and advisory services for value-added and core portfolio investments,
commercial and multifamily residential property acquisitions and note purchases. KW Services includes property and
asset management for third-party and company-owned assets, auction and residential sales, brokerage, construction
management and trust services.
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Dear Shareholders:

The past three years have been among the most challenging in

estate. Despite that resistance, we trekked onward. We had over

our nation’s history, as every industry and company experienced

1,000 investor meetings, and I am very pleased to report that

the downward effects of the global economic slowdown on a

our efforts paid tremendous dividends for KW’s shareholders.

scale not seen since the Great Depression. Major corrections

Over the last 18 months, we raised $1.3 billion of new capital,

create new opportunities that, if seized, can transform companies

which includes approximately $350 million of equity and debt

to even greater heights. Having started with a book net worth

for the parent company, and is now allowing us to expand our

of $50,000 in 1988, it is humbling for me to witness the

service business and our investment platform at a time when

extraordinarily positive events and good fortune that have

many real estate operators are, at best, contracting. Additionally,

transpired at Kennedy Wilson during the past 18 months.

Kennedy Wilson created new business relationships with some

We began 2009 knowing that the real estate capital markets

of the most well capitalized financial firms in North America

had collapsed, creating illiquidity never before seen in our

that have a desire to invest in our real estate platform. I am

industry. Several major investment banks had failed overnight

confident that we will continue to have access to billions of

and the residential and income property markets were under

additional equity for value-added buying opportunities, which

severe pressure. Given those events, we made the decision to

continue to emerge daily. By any measure, Kennedy Wilson’s

focus our efforts throughout 2009 on raising more capital for

balance sheet and management team are now in the strongest

the company to take advantage of what would certainly be one

condition in the company’s history.

of the greatest buying opportunities of the last 50 years. It was

The highlights of our capital raising from the last 18 months

inevitable, given the lack of global liquidity, that many of the

include:

traditional sources of debt and equity we had come to rely on

• The company went public in November 2009 and is now

would evaporate. We packed our suitcases and spent most of

proudly listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the

2009 visiting potential new partners. It was a daunting task,

symbol “KW.” From that effort, we raised $110 million and

with the Dow below 7,000 and the subprime debt crisis in the

converted $53 million of preferred stock to common equity

headlines everyday, to tell our story and raise capital for real

for a total of $163 million.
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1999

1977

Fund management business is launched.
Kennedy Wilson acquires six real estate
services companies to expand platform.

Kennedy Wilson founded as a real estate auction company.

1995
1992
Company goes public.
Listed on Nasdaq.

Commercial brokerage
business launched.
Focus on high value
properties.

1994
Kennedy Wilson Japan
office opens.

1998
Kennedy Wilson acquires Heitman Properties, Ltd.,
a full service property management, leasing and
construction management company.

1988
Kennedy Wilson purchased by William McMorrow
and partners. Auction marketing evolves into a global
business with high-end property sales in the U.S., U.K.,
Spain, Australia and Asia.

Launches acquisition platform in Japan by acquiring
Kawasaki Tech Center in almost $100 million
transaction.
Colony Capital invests $126 million in Kennedy
Wilson and Kennedy Wilson Japan.

So the obvious question is: can this capital be deployed for

• Kennedy Wilson raised $925 million of separate account
and fund capital to purchase repriced real estate assets.

value-added returns? For over 22 years, we have used our service

New investors include Fairfax Financial, Deutsche Bank,

business as a key entry point and lead generator to acquire

Siguler Guff, Wake Forest University, ND Capital, the

assets in our target markets. We have a very talented executive

Cleveland Foundation, Jacobs Capital, Case Western

team that has worked closely together for an average of fifteen

Reserve University and Key Bank.

years. Sharing market data within our business units and seizing
acquisition opportunities is a seamless process. The defining

• In May of 2010, Kennedy Wilson formed a relationship
with Prem Watsa, chairman and CEO of Fairfax Financial.

qualities of Kennedy Wilson have always been our ability to

As a result of that, we closed a $100 million convertible

adapt to changing market conditions, our hands on real estate

preferred equity placement with Fairfax, making Prem’s

capability and our entrepreneurial spirit.

company KW’s largest non-management shareholder when

In 2009, we carefully kicked off our new acquisition program

they convert their preferred to common within five years.

by buying 149 condo units in a high-rise located in the
Koreatown section of Los Angeles. Since that $33 million

• We have increased our unsecured line of credit to $75

acquisition, we have closed over $1 billion of new purchases.

million.
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2009

2002

Kennedy Wilson completes merger with
Prospect Acquisition Corp.

IPO of Kennedy Wilson Japan completed.
Listed on Tokyo Stock Exchange.

New entity Kennedy-Wilson Holdings raises
$110 million of equity.

Kennedy Wilson buys back 60% of stock.

2007
Bay Area Fund and
Fund III formed.

Siguler Guff forms $108 million joint venture
with Kennedy Wilson.
Investment bank forms $500 million joint
venture with Kennedy Wilson.

2005
Fund II formed.
Kennedy Wilson establishes
multifamily acquisition
platform in Japan.

2008
Louisiana Community
Development Fund formed.
$83 million of preferred stock
and convertible debt issued.

2000
Company launches multifamily value-added investment
fund program. Property Fund I formed.

2010
Kennedy Wilson lists on NYSE.
Fairfax Financial invests $100 million
in Kennedy Wilson and commits
another $250 million for joint venture
investments.
Kennedy Wilson added to the Russell
2000® index.

Company completes approximately $600 million of real
estate and note portfolio acquisitions.

These purchases have included the purchase of $550 million in

November of 2009 with the acquisition of Cascade Ridge, a

bank loans secured by real estate.

518-unit multifamily property, through one of our funds. In

In December 2009, we ramped up our real estate secured loan

May of 2010, with Pacific Coast Capital Partners, we acquired
the 612-unit Summerhouse Apartments in Alameda, CA. In

buying business. Our distressed debt buying platform is now

both transactions, we restructured existing debt and equity to

extremely active, having purchased, at deep discounts, 79 loans

create tremendous future upside as the rental market resets

with a total unpaid principal balance of approximately $550

itself on the West Coast and becomes poised for future growth.

million. We have been able to source these deals through our

The company currently owns and manages 23 communities on

service business and the management team’s relationships with

the West Coast comprising 7,321 units at an average occupancy

senior bank executives.

of 95%.

As the residential markets have experienced a contraction in

In 2010, Kennedy Wilson also entered the residential services

value, Kennedy Wilson has positioned itself to repurchase

business as a fee for service asset manager and disposition con-

equity positions at discounted prices as a result of partners and

sultant for distressed condominium projects. In May, we were

third parties that were unable to meet debt rebalancing require-

engaged by a German bank to oversee the sale of a 96-unit

ments. We began that effort in Federal Way, Washington in
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opport
high-rise condo in Los Angeles. At present, we are also working

• John Ross in Portland, OR: 50 high rise condominiums in

closely with a number of private equity firms to assist them in

a certified “green” high-rise tower sold for $15,000,000.

the sale of distressed condominium projects on the West Coast.

• Palisade Palms in Galveston, TX: 27 luxury resort high-rise

Kennedy Wilson’s entire investment platform covers the western

condominiums with direct access to the beaches on the

U.S., Hawaii and Japan, and all of our recent acquisitions have

Gulf of Mexico sold for $13,000,000.

been in those markets. We are creating large potential gains

• Silver Spur in Rolling Hills Estates, CA: 18 elegant

and fee streams through these acquisitions and we are now well

courtyard condominiums sold for $13,000,000.

on our way to meeting our stated goal of acquiring $2 billion of

Since the beginning of the current cycle, we have conducted

repriced assets in 2010*.

auctions in 19 states and Canada, selling thousands of residen-

The service side of our business has also experienced great suc-

tial units at auction. Our product type has expanded from resi-

cess, as we continue to win new assignments throughout the

dential new homes to include resort, commercial and land.

U.S. and Canada and have added numerous property manage-

Based on past successes and a strong pipeline, there is signifi-

ment assignments as well. Our auction business gained momen-

cant potential for future auction business in California, Texas

tum with multiple high profile sales of luxury properties,

and the Pacific Northwest.

condominium towers and estate homes. The majority of the

Kennedy Wilson’s property management business has grown

auctions were of properties in our target markets. A few of the

through 21 new assignments across the country in 2009 and

recent successes include:

the acquisition of Sachse Real Estate, a Los Angeles-based retail

• Forest Circle in Castro Valley, CA: 31 condominiums sold

brokerage company. The addition of Sachse Real Estate has

for over $11,500,000.

expanded Kennedy Wilson’s retail capabilities during a time

• Market Lofts in downtown Los Angeles, CA: 55 condo-

when property owners need to creatively solve issues related to

miniums sold for a record-breaking $21,500,000. Kennedy

vacancies and struggling tenants. In order to bring value to

Wilson offered and sold the largest number of units in one

retail projects, property owners are adjusting pricing expecta-

residential project, exceeding expectations for number of

tions to a level that is commensurate with the current demands

units offered and sold while maintaining higher than

of tenants and buyers, thus increasing transaction volumes and

expected sale prices on all units.

revenue for Kennedy Wilson’s brokerage services.

• Lake Windermere Pointe in Calgary/Alberta, Canada:
25 resort condominiums sold for over $6,000,000.

*Over half of this was completed through the beginning of July.
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u n i t y >>
The current distress in the market has also forced change in

equity in real estate investments of $262 million. The real estate

ownership of many real estate properties, providing Kennedy

transactions that we have closed so far this year have created an

Wilson with the opportunity to obtain new accounts. In 2009,

income stream that will significantly increase the EBITDA of

we performed lease analyses for U.S. Bancorp’s newly acquired

the company. Due to the mid-year timing of many of these

nine bank sites (106 locations) from First Bank of Oak Park

transactions, we will see the full effect of these deals in 2011.

(FBOP) in California, Illinois and Texas. Other recent property

We have accomplished all of this and still maintained the high-

management assignments include:

est level of liquidity in our firm’s history. Kennedy Wilson has

• Figueroa Courtyard in Los Angeles, CA: 271,000 square feet

emerged from this economic downturn as one of the strongest

• Wachovia Tower in Fort Lauderdale, FL: 338,000 square feet

and well positioned companies in the real estate industry, and

• Bluff House in St. Augustine, FL: 324,000 square feet

we look forward to the next five years with great enthusiasm, as
it will present great growth opportunities for well capitalized

In total, Kennedy Wilson added approximately three million

companies like ours. We have never forgotten our roots. When

square feet to its management portfolio in 2009. Furthermore,

I think about starting Kennedy Wilson with $50,000 of capital

in the first half of 2010, we have already signed several major

in 1988 and now having the very good fortune to have our cur-

new property management accounts.

rent capital base, I can only express gratitude and thanks to our

In Japan, our portfolio of 50 multifamily assets, totaling 2,410

shareholders, employees, capital providers and the many friends

units located in Tokyo and other major cities, continues to per-

who have supported and participated with us over the last 22

form well at 95% occupancy, generating significant cash flow.

years. Imua! (Onward with spirit and momentum in unity).

We will continue to seek opportunistic acquisitions to expand

With great respect,

our portfolio.
Kennedy Wilson began 2009 with a book net worth of $133
million, consolidated cash of $26 million and equity in real
estate investments of $165 million. Since then, we have closed

William J. McMorrow

in excess of $1 billion of real estate transactions and increased

June 30, 2010

our equity in those and other real estate investments by nearly
$100 million. Today, we have a book net worth of approximately $300 million, consolidated cash of $91 million and
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U.S. Bancorp, various

Pacifica is a 32-unit condominium project
located near Newport Beach. Kennedy
Wilson acquired the note on the property in
December of 2009, at which time, 12 units
were already sold. The proposed strategy is
to continue with a conventional sales program to liquidate the remaining units at
prices consistent with the closed units. The
net project revenue after costs of sale and
costs of carry will likely return all of the
capital invested, and Kennedy Wilson will
own the remaining entitled land at a basis
of zero.

Property Management

Market Lofts is a 267-unit mixed-use community situated above a 50,000 SF supermarket in downtown Los Angeles. Market
Lofts began its for-sale program in 2007
but had a remaining balance of 55 units
dispersed throughout the mid-rise. Kennedy
Wilson installed a 90-day concentrated marketing program that yielded 394 qualified
bidders to compete at auction. The one-day
auction was conducted in November 2009
and produced over $21 million in sales with
all units sold and escrows successfully closed
within 90 days.

Pacifica, Costa Mesa, CA

Note

Auction

Market Lofts, Los Angeles, CA
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In November 2009, First Bank of Oak Park
was shut down by the FDIC and acquired
by U.S. Bancorp. Kennedy Wilson was subsequently hired by U.S. Bancorp to perform
lease analyses on all of the leased and most
of the owned sites, a total of 106 locations.
The company completed the analyses on
an accelerated time frame of just six weeks.
Kennedy Wilson provides a variety of services
to U.S. Bancorp, including property management, investment sales and site location
for new branches.
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The Oaks, Thousand Oaks, CA

7060 Hollywood Blvd. is a 12-story Class A
office tower with approximately 175,000 SF.
Kennedy Wilson earned the construction and
property management assignment in August
of 2007 and became a joint venture partner
of the project seven months later. In 2009,
Kennedy Wilson completed an $18 million
renovation of the building, including complete
demolition of all interiors, replacement of windows, modernization of elevators, replacement
of mechanical systems and enhancement of
the main lobby and ground floor retail storefronts. Additionally, the Company completed
a $7 million tenant improvement build-out for
a high profile entertainment company, securing a 100,000 SF lease—one of the largest
lease transactions of 2009 in Los Angeles.

Lease

7060 Hollywood Blvd., Hollywood, CA

The Mercury is a 22-story luxury condo
minium tower located at the epicenter of the
Koreatown submarket and was acquired
by Kennedy Wilson in June of 2009. Prior
ownership was successful in selling 89 of the
residences over a four-year period but still
had a balance of 149 units unsold. Kennedy
Wilson relaunched the project with a new
sales and marketing campaign after determining prices that were market appropriate.
As a result, all remaining units were successfully sold during the 32-week campaign.
The unprecedented sales velocity made The
Mercury known as a case study on sales and
pricing positioning for conventional sales
turnaround programs in the current market.

Construction ManagemenT

The Mercury, Los Angeles, CA

Acquisition and Sale

t h r i v i n g
The Oaks is a three-story Class A office building containing approximately 355,000 SF.
Kennedy Wilson purchased The Oaks in
September of 2007 with 78.6% of the building occupied. In September of 2009, during
one of the country’s most challenging leasing
environments, Kennedy Wilson welcomed
State Farm Mutual Automobile Insura nce
Company to The Oaks and three months
later, renewed and expanded the lease with
Baxter Healthcare Corporation for over
230,000 SF in one of the largest lease transactions to be completed in Los Angeles in
2009. The Oaks is now 97% leased.
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Business

Company Overview

KW Investments
We formalized our investing activities in 1999 by creating an investment
arm, KW Investments. Through this investment arm, we co-invest
through separate accounts and closed-end funds in the acquisition of real
estate including office, multifamily, loans, retail, hotels, residential con
dominiums and land for development. We aim to create value with our
hands-on approach and seek to harvest value through an exit strategy
which is established at the time of acquisition. KW Investments consists of
more than 20 investment professionals whose time is dedicated to sourcing, analyzing, executing and managing fund and joint venture investments. In June 2009, we formed KW Capital Markets with the primary
function of raising private and institutional capital, assisting with investor
relations, and managing other strategic initiatives.
We are a strategic investor and a manager of portfolio investments both
in wholly-owned projects and in partnership with institutional investors in
the U.S. and Japan. Since 1999, we have invested over $2.0 billion of
equity across office, multifamily, retail, hotels, and residential properties
through our joint ventures and closed-end funds.
Our investment activity focuses on the west coast of the United States,
Tokyo, Japan, Texas and Hawaii. In our investing activity, we typically act
as the general partner whereby we invest on average between 5-15% of the
equity in a given venture. The target investment size generally ranges from
$15-$100 million. In our various investment vehicles, there are typically
restrictions on making an investment in a single asset that represents more
than 20% of the equity in a given platform without the consent of its limited partner(s).
In general, we invest in value-added properties for which we act as general partner and operator of the property. As general partner and operator
of real estate properties, we are responsible for the following:
• Acquisitions, including sourcing deals, due diligence and escrow
closing;
• Leasing, including setting rental rates and negotiating and executing
leases;
• Renovation, including supervising tenant improvements and/or unit
upgrades, construction management and capital improvements to
common areas;
• Business plan implementation, including refinancing of properties
and execution of marketing plans; and
• Disposition of properties, including sales timing decisions, brokerage
services and escrow closing.
Our investments are generally held in fee simple interest. On average,
we utilize approximately 65% loan-to-cost on the properties that we
acquire while generally obtaining financing for periods of between 3 and
10 years. Our loans are split between interest only and amortizing in
nature. Our properties are generally fully-developed and typically have a
renovation plan that include some common area and tenant area work
which generally represents less than 10% of the purchase price of the asset.

Founded in 1977, we are a diversified, international real estate company
that provides investment and real estate services. We have grown from
an auction business in one office into a vertically-integrated operating
company with over 300 professionals in 22 offices throughout the U.S.
and Japan. We are an industry leader, currently owning real estate (through
our closed-end funds, joint ventures and wholly and majority owned entities) and managing over 40 million square feet of residential, multifamily
and commercial real estate, including 10,000 apartment units, throughout
the U.S. and Japan. Our operations are defined by two core business
units: KW Investments and KW Services. We do not intend to elect and
qualify to be taxed as a real estate investment trust for U.S. federal income
tax purposes.
Recent Events
In June 2009, a joint venture of which Kennedy-Wilson Residential
Condominium Group has a 50.5% ownership interest, acquired 149
unsold units in The Mercury, a Los Angeles condominium property.
As of February 28, 2010, the joint venture sold and closed escrow on all
149 units generating a net gain on sale after expenses of approximately
$18.7 million.
During 2009, a joint venture in which our Japanese Multifamily
Group has a 35% interest, extinguished $131 million of debt for a discounted settlement, resulting in equity in joint venture income to us of
$9.9 million.
In October 2009, we entered into an agreement in principle with
Deutsche Bank to form a partnership with a total non-binding com
mitment of up to $500 million (up to approximately $450 million from
Deutsche Bank and up to approximately $50 million from us), to finance
and acquire distressed real estate debt and to source and finance commercial and multifamily whole loan origination opportunities on the west
coast. The partnership made its first investment in February 2010 with the
acquisition of a loan portfolio totaling approximately $342 million in
unpaid principal balance.
In November 2009, we entered into a separate account agreement with
Siguler Guff, a multi-strategy private equity firm. The separate account’s
total equity commitment is up to approximately $108 million (including
up to approximately $8.1 million from us) and was formed to pursue
acquisition and repositioning opportunities of distressed assets with a
focus on residential condominium projects. The first acquisition in the
platform was completed in December 2009 through a joint venture purchase of a loan secured by a 32 unit condominium project and adjacent
developable land in Costa Mesa, CA with an unpaid principal balance of
approximately $19.5 million.

8

K enned y - W ilso N H O L D I N G S , I N C . A N D S U B S I D I A R I E S 2 0 0 9  annual report

(iii)	We manage two Double Bottom-Line funds that seek to provide
market rate returns for investors and positive social, economic
and environmental benefits to the communities in which they
invest. The Double Bottom-Line Funds are typically geographically focused on a specific target market.

We have historically raised equity for our investments in three ways:
through joint-ventures, closed-end funds and investment specific.
• Our co-investment in joint ventures have typically been between 5%
and 15% of the total equity investment. Joint venture and fund
investments include the following real estate types:
(i)	U.S. Office—Since 1999, we have invested approximately $550
million of equity in the acquisition of 33 office properties in the
U.S., totaling more than 6.6 million square feet.
(ii)	U.S. Multifamily—Since 1999, we have invested approximately
$525 million of equity in the acquisition of 56 multifamily properties in the U.S., totaling approximately 14,600 units and 11.8
million square feet.
(iii) Japan—Our investment professionals have been active in Japan
for over a decade and we currently have a strong team of origination, finance and asset management professionals on the ground.
Our Japanese activities started in 1995 where we invested approximately $590 million of equity through a former wholly-owned
subsidiary that was taken public in February 2002 and has
been listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange since 2003. Our
company and our management team owned a majority position
in said subsidiary through September 2002 and we were the largest stockholders through May 2003. That company, now the
publicly-traded Kenedix, is no longer owned by or affiliated with
us. We sold all of our interest in Kenedix at a substantial gain.
In 2005, we re-entered the Japanese market when we formed KW
Investment Co., Ltd. to acquire multifamily properties in several
key markets in Japan with Wachovia Development Corporation
as our partner. Since 2005, KW Investment Co. has invested
more than $230 million of equity in the acquisition of 2,410
multifamily units, totaling approximately one million square
feet. Including our prior investment experience through what
is now Kenedix, we have invested a total of approximately $1.7
billion in the acquisition of 81 investments, primarily in multifamily and office properties.
(iv)	U.S. Other Real Estate—Since 1999, we have invested approximately $300 million of equity in the acquisition of loans, retail,
industrial, residential and other real estate-related investments in
the U.S.
• In addition to our joint ventures, we manage several closed-end funds.
Below are the descriptions of our closed-end funds that have completed their fund raising:
(i)	K WI Property Fund I, L.P. closed with $62.5 million of capital
commitments in August 2000. This fund has reached the end of
its investment period and is now focused on harvesting the value
created from the successful execution of each investment’s business plan.
(ii)	K WI Property Fund II, L.P. closed with $106 million of capital
commitments in October 2005. This fund is currently fully
invested and is now focused on harvesting the value created from
the successful execution of each investment’s business plan.

KW Services
Through our services group, KW Services, we offer a comprehensive line
of real estate services for the full life-cycle of real estate ownership and
investment. KW Services provides property management, auction marketing, brokerage, construction and trust management services to financial
institutions, other institutional clients and individual investors. Through
our extensive network of property managers and brokers, KW Services
provides access to real-time market knowledge and trends, along with
proprietary deal flow to KW Investments.
• Property & Asset Management—We currently manage 40 million
square feet of office, industrial, and retail properties for over 50 institutional clients and individual investors both in the U.S. and Japan.
• Auction Services—Since inception in 1977, we have sold more than
$5.0 billion of third-party real estate through the auction process. We
are considered one of the leaders in auction marketing, having sold
various property types on a global basis. The Auction Services group
conducts live and online auctions and executes accelerated marketing
programs for all types of residential and commercial real estate.
• Commercial Brokerage—The Commercial Brokerage group is comprised of Investment Sales and Leasing groups. The Investment Sales
group specializes in innovative marketing programs tailored to client
objectives for all types of real estate and various financial instruments
collateralized by real estate. Our real estate professionals in the U.S.
and Japan have extensive expertise in marketing, property and loan
valuation, asset management, equity and debt sourcing, joint venture
formation and financing and real estate acquisition advisory services.
The Leasing group is a leader in both landlord and tenant representation. The group provides clients with a full complement of brokerage
services for office, industrial, land, multifamily, retail and capital
markets disciplines.
• Construction Management—The Construction Management group
provides construction and project management services to institutional, corporate and individual clients in all areas of commercial and
residential real estate. This group provides a full array of services
including site and feasibility analysis, land planning and project
design, selection of consultants, financing, bidding and construction
administration.
• Trust Management—The Trust Management group provides asset and
property management services to some of the largest global banks and
trust companies holding investment real estate in the U.S., as trustees
on behalf of private and institutional fiduciary accounts.
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Business

(continued)

Our Strengths

Strategy and Target Markets

We believe we have a unique platform from which to execute our investment and services strategy due to the fact we have both an auction business
and an investment platform. We believe that our platform provides significant competitive advantages over other real estate buyers operating standalone or investment-focused firms and may allow us to generate superior
risk-adjusted returns. Our investment strategy focuses on investments that
offer significant appreciation potential through intensive property management, leasing, repositioning, redevelopment and the opportunistic use
of capital.
Our competitive advantages include:
• Transaction Experience—Our executive committee has more than 125
years of combined real estate experience and has been working and
investing together on average for over a decade. Members of the
Executive Committee have collectively acquired, developed and managed in excess of $15 billion of real estate investments in the U.S. and
Japan through various economic cycles at our company and throughout prior careers.
• Extensive Relationship and Sourcing Network—We leverage our services
business in order to source off-market deals. In addition, the Executive
Committee and our acquisition team have transacted business in
nearly every major metropolitan market on the west coast of the U.S.,
as well as in Japan. Their local presence and reputation in these
markets has enabled them to cultivate key relationships with major
holders of property inventory, in particular financial institutions,
throughout the real estate community.
• Structuring Expertise and Speed of Execution—Prior acquisitions completed by us have taken a variety of forms including direct property
investments, joint ventures, exchanges involving stock or operating
partnership units, participating loans and investments in performing
and non-performing mortgages with the objective of long-term
ownership. We believe we have developed a reputation of being able
to quickly execute, as well as originate and creatively structure acquisitions, dispositions and financing transactions.
• Vertically-Integrated Platform for Operational Enhancement—We are comprised of over 300 professionals in both KW Investments and KW
Services, with 22 regional offices throughout the U.S. and Japan.
This diversified business model is aimed at ensuring success through
real estate cycles. We have a hands-on approach to real estate investing and possess the local expertise in property management, leasing,
construction management, development and investment sales, which
we believe enables us to invest successfully in its selected submarkets.
• Risk Protection and Investment Discipline—We underwrite our investments based upon a thorough examination of property economics and
a critical understanding of market dynamics and risk management
strategies. We conduct an in-depth sensitivity analysis on each of
our acquisitions. This analysis applies various economic scenarios
that include changes to rental rates, absorption periods, operating
expenses, interest rates, exit values and holding periods. We use this
analysis to develop our disciplined acquisition strategies.

Our investment style and philosophy has been consistent over the past
decade and seeks to drive the ongoing strategy for future investments. The
three core fundamentals include:
• Significant proprietary deal flow from an established network of
industry relationships;
• Focus on a systematic research process with a disciplined approach to
investing; and
• Superior in-house operating execution.
We continue to focus primarily on equity real estate investments, utilizing leverage where determined appropriate. In addition, we also acquire
real estate-related financings, such as first trust deeds. Specifically, the
investment strategy of our company focuses on the following situations:
• Financially distressed/ownership situations;
• Under-managed or under-leased assets; and
• Repositioning opportunities.
We intend to pursue acquisition opportunities for our current investment platforms as follows:
• Commercial Platform—Take advantage of office, industrial and retail
debt maturities;
• Funds—Value add/opportunistic strategy; dedicated capital for a variety of deal types;
• Condo Platform—Distressed condo deals; reposition and exit;
• Residential Platform—Combination of current return from multifamily projects and capital return from condo projects; and
• First Trust Deed Platform—Fills void in lending market; provides 10% +
unlevered current yield and potential to own real estate at very attractive basis in event of foreclosure.
Our initial target submarkets, which include southern California, the
San Francisco Bay area, the Puget Sound area (Greater Seattle), Hawaii
and the Greater Tokyo area, share certain similar characteristics that we
believe can create investment opportunities. Among these commonalities
are dense populations, high barriers to entry, scarcity of land and supply
constraints.
KW Services plays a critical role in supporting our investment strategy
and various platforms. KW Services intends to continue to facilitate the
gathering of local market intelligence and market data for evaluating and
valuing investments, generate proprietary transaction flow and create value
once an investment is made through efficient implementation of asset
management or repositioning strategies.

Industry and Market Overview
United States
We believe that the acquisition outlook for 2010 and beyond is one of
opportunity. Since capitalization rates have begun to rise and based on our
market analysis, well-capitalized investors will potentially be able to purchase properties at significant discounts to historical cost that may provide
significant cash-on-cash returns. The recent credit crunch in the financial
markets has dried up liquidity. As a result, many financial institutions
have been forced to mark-to-market or sell both their performing and nonperforming assets in order to firm up their balance sheets. We believe that
U.S. financial institutions and publicly traded companies, such as Real
Estate Investment Trusts, will continue to be forced sellers of their real
estate hard assets and loans for the next several quarters.
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Due to the current disarray in the financial markets, many U.S. real
estate markets are experiencing a downturn in occupancy and property
values. Unlike the last cycle, this downturn has been driven by the lack
of liquidity and the tightening of the credit markets rather than by an
oversupply of new product. We believe that underlying real estate fundamentals have remained solid, particularly in major metropolitan and
downtown areas where supply constraints exist, and companies continue
to consolidate in proximity to their corporate headquarters. Also, downward pricing pressures exist that create potential buying opportunities.
We will seek to exploit the opportunities caused by the current economic
downturn and closed capital markets by identifying the cities and submarkets that have the most predictable, near-term positive indicators.
We believe the recent economic, capital and credit markets events will
create tremendous buying opportunities as properties may be purchased
at significant discounts to historical cost. Many asset dispositions will
result from:
• forced liquidation through bankruptcy proceedings;
• companies reducing real estate portfolios to raise cash to shore up
their balance sheets; and
• highly leveraged property owners who will have loans come due in
2010 and 2011 and will be unable to refinance.
As sellers are under greater pressure to move assets off of their balance
sheets, our strong sourcing relationships will position us as the buyer of
choice to acquire properties at steep discounts. Sellers will look to firms
that they have relationships with and can execute quickly and discreetly.
We have long-standing relationships with healthy regional and inter
national lenders who have expressed an ability and willingness to offer
financing for investments.
Although interest rates remain low, the lack of available debt has
constrained highly-leveraged buyers. We believe that the timing of the
real estate market cycle combined with our deep market relationships,
systematic research process and cross-platform synergies will be crucial to
its potential success.

Competition
We compete with a range of both local and national real estate firms,
individual investors and corporations. Because of our unique combination
of businesses, we compete with brokerage and property management companies as well as companies that invest in real estate and distressed notes.
The brokerage and property management businesses are both highly
fragmented and competitive. We compete with real estate brokerage companies on the basis of our relationship with property owners, quality of
service, and commissions charged. We compete with property management and leasing firms also on the basis of our relationship with clients,
the range and quality of services provided, and fees and commissions
charged. Our investment operations compete to varying degrees with
real estate investment partnerships and other investment companies.
We compete with these other investors on the basis of our relationship
with the sellers and our ability to close an investment transaction in a
short time period at competitive pricing.
We differentiate ourselves from other firms in the industry with our full
service, investment oriented structure. Whereas most other firms use an
investment platform to obtain additional service business revenue, we use
our service platform to enhance the investment process and ensure the
alignment of interest with our investors.
Since each market and opportunity is unique, different competitors
surface in each transaction. Due to our proprietary sourcing capabilities,
we often acquire properties in off-market transactions where we face
limited competition. In more widely marketed transactions, our significant on-the-ground operations provide insight into market conditions and
trends that we believe allows for informed acquisition strategies.
In contrast to our vertically-integrated platform and deep market
knowledge, many large institutional players act as “asset allocators” and
rely on firms similar to us and the third-party brokerage community to
source their deals. These competitors tend to focus on large, widelymarketed “Class A” properties that do not require significant on-theground expertise, hands-on redevelopment or local market knowledge.
We also compete for investment opportunities with regional investors
and developers who understand the local markets but lack the equity to
close deals with their own capital.
Due to our reputation for certainty of close, capital availability and
discretion in publicizing deals, we are often able to acquire properties
even when we are not the highest bidder. Our relationship-driven
approach, reputation for certainty of close, local market knowledge
and on-the-ground experience strongly position us when compared to
our competition.

Japan
We predict that Japan, while still subject to the same market forces affecting economies across the globe, will likely experience a downturn that
is shorter than that in other industrialized economies as the Japanese
banking system remains strong relative to its peers. We believe that the
country’s economy is in a better position to weather current economic
conditions relative to the economies of certain other countries because
over the past decade Japanese households generally have saved money, and
companies have steeply reduced their debt as a proportion of GDP. In the
current credit environment, as in the U.S., highly-leveraged investors in
Japan have been forced to reduce their debt resulting in a rise in capitalization rates.
Japan’s current demographic trends include an influx of migration to
major cities creating strong demand for housing. Our research shows that
real estate fundamentals have remained strong in Greater Tokyo’s residential market, and, in particular, in Tokyo’s three major wards: Minato-ku,
Shibuy-ku, and Setagaya-ku. With diminishing supply of new inventory
due to stricter building regulations imposed in 2007, rents for quality
assets are expected to remain strong while vacancy rates remains stable.
We expect that properties in the Greater Tokyo area that are newer and of
higher quality will remain target assets for acquisition by many institutional investors.

Markets
We believe that real estate is a local business. With this in mind, we intend
to continue to focus on the markets that we know well through both our
investment experience and service businesses. We intend to continue to
target markets that we have been successful in historically due to our
in-depth knowledge and relationships.
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Business

(continued)

Our focused research process begins with a macro analysis (economic
growth, overall market cycles, property specific cycles, availability and
pricing, ranking/evaluation) and ends with a micro analysis (submarket/
neighborhood analysis, site analysis, due diligence and risk/return analysis). We will often leverage KW Services to access real-time market knowledge and trends to determine our investment analysis and strategy process
and choices of markets/submarkets. This rigorous process continues to be
a key driver of our investment decisions.
The choice of markets and submarkets for our investment strategy
will be based on a research-driven process that involves five stages of
extensive analysis.
• Stage 1: Growth Composite of Employment/Population/Income Compared
to Nation—Each city is analyzed using a composite index of growth
that weighs the last six years of growth history with the next five years
of forecasted employment, population and income trends as compared to the overall nation. The risk of the growth forecast and the
stability of the economic base and political climate are also considered
at this stage.
• Stage 2: Evaluation of a City’s Overall Market Cycle Position by Property
Type—In the second stage, macro market cycle analysis is conducted
by property type. Certain statistical adjustments are then applied to
the geographical submarkets within each city to determine if a city,
and property type is operating above or below “equilibrium,” and if
market upside potential exists within each city and property type.
• Stage 3: Product Specific Cycle Analysis in Each City—This stage requires
extensive market research and interviews with local experts at the submarket level. In this stage, each product type is evaluated with respect
to its upside potential. Three types of cycles and upside potential are
measured at this stage:
• occupancy cycle upside,
• rent rate cycle upside, and
• property value upside.
A key part of this analysis is to determine what discounts from replacement cost and current cash-on-cash returns can be achieved relative to
the upside potential for each property type. We seek to buy well-located
properties at prices substantially below replacement cost.

• Stage 4: Evaluation of Product Availability and Pricing—The focus in this
stage is to determine the total product inventory of each targeted
property class in the specified market, evaluate recent transactions in
the market and submarkets and project the amount of new product
that will likely become available for purchase in the future. Based on
recent transactions, market studies and interviews with local market
experts in each city (brokers, appraisers and market researchers), the
expected economics of properties purchased in the future are estimated, including estimates of capitalization rates, rents, occupancy
levels and sales prices relative to replacement cost.
• Stage 5: Ranking/Evaluation Relative to our Investment Strategy—In the
final stage of the evaluation process, the overall desirability of each
city for investment is evaluated within the context of our investment
strategy. The market niches that offer the most upside are identified,
and a strategy is developed to capitalize on those niches. During this
step, investment allocations are suggested for each city, including the
amount of capital to be invested in each city and product type over a
defined investment time horizon.
In parallel with our thorough examination of market dynamics, we conduct an in-depth risk management analysis on each of our acquisitions.
This analysis applies various economic conditions and scenario forecasts
that include changes to rental rates, operating expenses, interest rates, exit
values and holding periods. We use this analysis to develop our disciplined
pricing strategies.
This market analysis will help to determine the acquisition strategies for
a variety of markets and submarkets that have the highest probability for
near-term value appreciation and to develop operating and exit strategies
that enhance returns and limit risk exposure.

Clients and Customers
We have long and extensive relationships with a broad range of prominent
institutions with which we have invested through joint venture and fund
arrangements and for which we have provided services. These institutions
include sovereign funds, financial institutions, insurance companies, pension funds, endowments, money managers and family offices.

Employees
As of year end, we had approximately 300 employees. We consider our
relationship with our employees to be good and have not experienced any
interruptions of our operations as a result of labor disagreements.
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Selected Financial Data

The following tables summarize our selected historical consolidated financial information. This information was derived from our audited financial
statements for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005. This information is only a summary. You should read this
information together in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the financial
statements and related notes included elsewhere in this document.
Year Ended December 31,

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

$ 32,225,000
—
32,571,000
10,097,000
667,000
$
0.03

$ 33,393,000
—
43,180,000
27,433,000
9,037,000
$
0.47

$ 26,498,000
—
34,606,000
14,689,000
6,541,000
$
0.36

$41,753,000
—
57,356,000
35,855,000
10,990,000
$
0.20

Statements of operations data:
Revenue
Merger-related operating expenses
Other operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income
(Loss) income from continuing operations
(Loss) earnings per share from continuing operations

$ 86,235,000
16,120,000
78,752,000
8,019,000
(9,657,000)
$
(0.36)

As of December 31,

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

$ 57,784,000
228,305,000
336,257,000
127,573,000
177,314,000
179,336,000

$ 25,831,000
190,915,000
255,883,000
131,423,000
105,551,000
105,802,000

$ 24,248,000
80,026,000
145,814,000
65,084,000
56,857,000
57,076,000

$ 15,332,000
57,744,000
107,746,000
40,517,000
49,447,000
49,603,000

$19,424,000
36,847,000
93,461,000
33,746,000
42,120,000
42,120,000

Balance sheet data:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments in real estate and joint ventures
Total assets
Debt
Kennedy-Wilson equity
Total equity

Business Combination
See Note 3 of our Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion of the business combination (the Merger) that occurred during the year
ended December 31, 2009.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Unless specifically noted otherwise, as used throughout this Man
agement’s Discussion and Analysis section, “we,” “our,” or “us” refers to
the business, operations and financial results of Kennedy-Wilson, Inc.
prior to, and Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. subsequent to, the closing
of the Merger as the context requires. “Prospect” refers to the operations
or financial results of Prospect Acquisition Corp. prior to the closing of
the Merger.

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with
the financial statements and related notes and the other financial information
appearing elsewhere in this report. This discussion and analysis contains
forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions.
Actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in the forwardlooking statements as a result of many factors.
In the interest of providing a more complete presentation of our financial
performance since inception, this discussion and analysis includes comparisons
of our consolidated financial results period from 2007 through 2009.

Macroeconomic Conditions
Our business is closely tied to general economic conditions and the real
estate industry. As a result, our economic performance, the value of our
real estate and real estate secured notes, and our ability to implement our
business strategies may be affected by changes in national and local economic conditions. The condition of the real estate markets in which we
operate tends to be cyclical and is related to the condition of the economy
in the U.S. and Japan as a whole and to the perceptions of investors of
the overall economic outlook. Rising interest rates, declining demand for
real estate or periods of general economic slowdown or recession have
had a direct negative impact on the real estate market in the past and a
recurrence of these conditions in the U.S. or a deeper recession in Japan
could result in a reduction in our revenues. In addition, the economic
condition of each local market where we operate may be dependent on one
or more industries.
We have experienced in past years, are currently experiencing, and
expect in the future to be negatively impacted by, periods of economic
slowdown or recession, and corresponding declines in the demand for real
estate and related services, within the markets in which we operate. The
current economic recession has been extraordinary for its worldwide scope,
its severity and its impact on major financial institutions, among other
aspects. The current recession and the downturn in the real estate market
has resulted in and/or may result in: a general decline in rents due to
defaulting tenants or less favorable terms for renewed or new leases; fewer
purchases and sales of properties by clients, resulting in a decrease in property management fees and brokerage commissions; a decline in actual and
projected sale prices of our properties resulting in lower returns on the
properties in which we have invested; higher interest rates, higher loan
costs, less desirable loan terms and a reduction in the availability of mortgage loans and mezzanine financing, all of which could increase costs and
could limit our ability to acquire additional real estate assets; and a
decrease in the availability of lines of credit and other sources of capital
used to purchase real estate investments and distressed notes.
Beginning in 2003, economic conditions in the United States rebounded
from the economic downturn in 2001 and 2002. The recovery, which
positively impacted the commercial and residential real estate markets generally, continued through the second quarter of 2007, helping to improve
the revenue in our services segment, particularly leasing and brokerage
revenue. Improved economic conditions also resulted in a general increase
in transaction activity, higher occupancy levels, rental rates, and property
values, helping to increase the income in our investments segment as
several of our real estate investments were sold.

Overview
We are a diversified, international real estate company that provides
investment and real estate services. We have grown from an auction business in one office into a vertically-integrated operating company with over
300 professionals in 22 offices throughout the U.S. and Japan. We are an
industry leader, currently owning real estate (through our closed-end
funds, joint ventures, and wholly and majority owned entities) and man
aging over 40 million square feet of residential, multifamily and commercial real estate, including 10,000 apartment units, throughout the U.S.
and Japan. Our operations are defined by two core business units: KW
Investments and KW Services.
On November 13, 2009, the stockholders of Prospect approved a merger
with KWI, whereby KWI became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Prospect,
which was renamed Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. (the “Merger”). The
directors and officers of KWI immediately before the Merger became our
directors and officers, except that one of the KWI directors immediately
before the Merger resigned and was replaced by a director from Prospect.
Pursuant to the Merger agreement, common stockholders of KWI
received as consideration 20,401,018 shares of Prospect’s common stock
and preferred stockholders of KWI received as consideration 5,598,982
shares of Prospect’s common stock, for an aggregate consideration of 26
million shares of Prospect common stock. In addition, 2,475,000 shares of
Prospect common stock were reserved for issuance to our employees, nonemployees and management pursuant to an equity compensation plan
adopted by Prospect’s board of directors and approved by Prospect’s stockholders on November 13, 2009. In connection with the Merger noted
below, the assets, liabilities and results of operations of Kennedy-Wilson,
Inc. (“KWI”) have become the historical financial statements of Prospect
and, accordingly, KWI’s operations for the full year ended December 31,
2007 have been included.
When reading our financial statements and the information included in
this section, it should be considered that we have experienced, and continue to experience, the same material trends that have affected the nation,
and therefore, our operations and financial condition. It is, therefore, a
challenge to predict our future performance based on our historical results,
but we believe that the following material trends assist in understanding
the variability of our historical earnings and cash flows and the potential
for the future:
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protecting our interests as a creditor in bankruptcies in certain geographic
regions; potentially adverse tax consequences; share ownership restrictions
on foreign operations; Japanese property and income taxes, tax withholdings and tariffs; and geographic, time zone, language and cultural differences between personnel in different areas of the world.
Our revenues from non-U.S. operations have been primarily denominated in the local currency where the associated revenues were earned.
Thus, we may experience significant fluctuations in revenues and earnings
because of corresponding fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.
To date, our foreign currency exposure has been limited to the Japanese
Yen. Due to the constantly changing currency exposures to which we will
be subject and the volatility of currency exchange rates, there can be no
assurance that we will not experience currency losses in the future, nor can
we predict the effect of exchange rate fluctuations upon future operating
results. Our management may decide to use currency hedging instruments
from time to time including foreign currency forward contracts, purchased
currency options (where applicable) and foreign currency borrowings.
The economic risks associated with these hedging instruments include
unexpected fluctuations in inflation rates, which could impact cash flow
relative to paying down debt, and unexpected changes in our underlying
net asset position. There can be no assurance that any hedging will
be effective.

Since the third quarter of 2007, U.S. economic activity has progressively
weakened due initially to stresses in the residential housing and financial
sectors and the impact of sharply higher energy costs. The weakening economic activity developed into a recession, affecting all segments of the
economy, in early 2008, as both consumer and business spending dropped.
This weakening economic activity, coupled with capital market stresses,
led to a global financial disruption in the third quarter of 2008, the consequences of which have continued through the end of 2009. This disruption caused credit markets to freeze up, investors to become more risk
averse and assets of all types, from the riskiest to the most secure, to lose
value. These conditions also caused the economy to contract further and
job losses to accelerate throughout 2008 and 2009. This has resulted in a
decline in leasing activity and space absorption, rising vacancy rates and
decreasing rents across the United States, which in turn, has reduced our
services revenue, particularly leasing and brokerage revenue. Investment
sales activity in the United States has been falling sharply from peak levels
in 2007 and has continued to decline through the end of 2009. This
decline is the result of an absence of debt financing, weakening property
fundamentals, and the re-pricing of risk in the face of economic and market uncertainty. The deteriorating conditions adversely affected our investments segment throughout 2008 and 2009 as property values decreased
sharply and disposition opportunities were markedly reduced.
The current economic downturn has also significantly affected countries throughout Asia, including Japan. The worldwide recession has led to
falling stock prices and asset values in Asia and reduced economic growth
prospects in Asia. Several property markets in Asia have been affected by
real estate developments that resulted in an oversupply of completed or
partially completed space. Property prices have fallen along with prices of
other investments and asset values. These conditions have resulted in a
decline in our investment sales and investment activities in Japan beginning in late 2008 and continuing through the end of 2009.
A rebound of our services and investments segments are expected, but
contingent on, among other things, the U.S. and Japanese economies
resuming their growth and credit markets attaining stability and pre
dictability over a sustained period. We are sensitive to the challenges of
the current economic climate and as a vertically integrated company,
we have the in-house expertise and skill sets to navigate through these
challenging times by taking advantage of opportunities in real estate and
the capital markets. We have been implementing and continue to implement cost-savings measures across our business lines to maximize our
competitive position.

Acquisitions, Dispositions, and Financings
Acquisitions
During the year ended December 31, 2009, we completed the following
acquisition transactions:
• In December 2009 we purchased a discounted non-performing
note on a condominium project and adjacent land in Costa Mesa,
California. The unpaid principal balance on the note was $19.5 million at the time of acquisition.
• In June 2009, we acquired 149 condominium units for $33.5 million
in a renovated condominium tower in Los Angeles, California.
Dispositions
During the year ended December 31, 2009, we completed the following
disposition transactions:
• In May 2009, we sold a multifamily property in Napa, California to
KW Property Fund III for a net gain of $0.5 million. The property
was originally owned in a joint venture partnership between us and
Hanover Financial. In December 2008, we acquired Hanover’s interest in the property.
• In March 2009, we sold 136 vacant, finished lots in Lancaster,
California for $6.3 million to KW Property Fund III. The lots are
planned for single family detached homes.
• During 2009, we sold 138 of the 149 condominium units that were
acquired in June 2009. The net gain generated on the sales after
expenses was $16.5 million.

International Operations
We have made investments in Asia, particularly in Japan, and plan to
expand our operations and investments in Japan and selected markets
throughout Asia in the future. If we are successful in implementing this
strategy, the increased scope of our international operations may lead to
more volatile financial results and difficulties in managing our businesses.
This volatility and difficulty could be caused by, among other things, the
following: currency fluctuations, restrictions and problems relating to the
repatriation of profits; difficulties and costs of staffing and managing
international operations; the burden of complying with multiple and
potentially conflicting laws; laws restricting foreign companies from conducting business and unexpected changes in regulatory requirements; the
impact of different business cycles and economic instability; political
instability and civil unrest; greater difficulty in perfecting our security
interests, collecting accounts receivable, foreclosing on security and

Financings
• During 2009, we entered into a $28 million loan agreement with
Pacific Western Bank. Principal and interest are payable monthly.
The agreement calls for 59 monthly payments of principal in the
amount of $467,000 and bears interest at the lender’s base rate, which
was 4% at December 31, 2009. The note can be prepaid at any time
without a prepayment penalty.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

• During 2008, before preferred shares were converted to common
shares and the shares were recast to match the presentation of Prospect
in connection with the Merger, we issued 53,000 shares of Series A
Preferred Stock (the “preferred stock”). The proceeds from the issuance of the preferred stock were $52,354,000, net of expenses related
to the offering totaling $646,000. The holders of the preferred stock
were entitled to receive dividends quarterly at a per annum rate equal
to 7% of the liquidation value of $1,000 per share. The preferred
stock had conversion price of $42 per share. In connection with the
Merger the preferred stock was converted to common stock and the
executed conversion price was changed to $36 per share. The change
in conversion price resulted in the issuance of additional shares to
pre-Merger preferred shareholders in the amount of $7,879,000. In
addition, cash dividend payments were made to pre-Merger preferred
shareholders for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 in the
amounts of $3,235,000 and $2,264,000, respectively.
• We have entered into a loan agreement with US Bank and East-West
Bank that provides us with an unsecured revolving credit facility for
use in acquisitions and for working capital purposes in the amount of
$30 million. The loan bears interest at a range of rates from prime to
prime plus 0.50%, or, at the borrower’s option, LIBOR plus 2.50% to
LIBOR plus 3.00%. During 2009, the average outstanding borrowings under the line of credit were $19.1 million with the high and low
outstanding balances being $26.0 million and $10.0 million, respectively. During 2008, the average outstanding borrowings under the
line of credit were $3.4 million with the high and low outstanding
balances being $18.5 million and $0 million, respectively. The borrowings under this loan had interest rates ranging from 3.25% to
4.50% and 3.75% to 5.50% at December 31, 2009, and December
31, 2008, respectively. The principal amount outstanding under this
loan was $10,000,000 at December 31, 2009 and $13,500,000 at
December 31, 2008. The loan matures in June 2011.
• In November 2008, we issued a convertible subordinated note with a
principal amount of $30 million to Guardian. The note bears interest
at a fixed rate of 7%. Interest is payable quarterly with the outstanding principal due in November 2018. The holder of the note may convert the note, in whole or in part, into common stock of ours at a
conversion price of $10.52 per (as adjusted for the Merger) share of
common stock at any time prior to the tenth anniversary of the original issue date of the note. On October 8, 2009, we and Guardian
entered into a letter agreement pursuant to which the parties agreed
to amend the Guardian Note, effective only if the Merger consummated, to change the conversion price to $9.86 per share and the expiration date for the conversion period to May 3, 2017. At any time on
or after the ninth anniversary of the original issue date of the note and
prior to the due date, we may demand that the holder of the note
convert the note in accordance with the terms of the note.
• In 2007, we issued junior subordinated debentures with an aggregate
principal amount of $40 million. The debentures were issued to a
trust established by us, which contemporaneously issued $40 million
of trust preferred securities to Merrill Lynch International. The interest rate on the debentures is fixed for the first ten years at 9.06%, and
variable thereafter at LIBOR plus 3.70%. Interest is payable quarterly
with the principal due in 2037.

(continued)

Critical Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of ours and our Kennedy-Wilson wholly owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation. In addition, we evaluate our relationships with other
entities to identify whether they are variable interest entities as defined by
FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic 810-10 and to
assess whether we are the primary beneficiary of such entities. If the
determination is made that we are the primary beneficiary, then that entity
is consolidated in the consolidated financial statements. The ownership of
the other interest holders of consolidated subsidiaries is reflected as noncontrolling interests.
Revenue Recognition—Management and leasing fees and commissions revenues are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of Revenue
Recognition ASC Subtopic 605-10. Management fees for property and
asset management are recognized over time as earned based upon the
terms of the management agreement. Leasing fees that are payable upon
tenant occupancy, payment of rent or other events beyond our control are
recognized upon the occurrence of such events. In the case of real estate
sales commissions, this generally occurs when escrow closes. In accordance
with the guidelines established for Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal
versus Net as an Agent in the ASC Subtopic 605-45, we record commission revenues and expenses on a gross basis. Of the criteria listed in the
Subtopic 605-45, we are the primary obligor in the transaction, do not
have inventory risk, perform all, or part, of the service, have credit risk,
and have wide latitude in establishing the price of services rendered and
discretion in selection of agents and determination of service
specifications.
Sales of real estate are recognized at the close of escrow when title to the
real property passes to the buyer. We follow the requirements for profit
recognition as set forth by the Sale of Real Estate ASC Subtopic 360-20.
Investments in Joint Ventures—We have a number of joint venture interests,
generally ranging from 5% to 15% (but occasionally up to 50%), that were
formed to acquire, manage, develop and/or sell real estate. Investments in
joint ventures which we do not control are accounted for under the equity
method of accounting as we can exercise significant influence, but do not
have the ability to control the joint venture. An investment in joint ventures is recorded at its initial investment plus or minus our share of undistributed income or loss and less distributions. Declines in value of our
investment in joint ventures that are other than temporary are recognized
when evidence indicates that such a decline has occurred.
Profit on the sales of real estate held by joint ventures that have continuing involvement are deferred until such time that the continuing involvement has been resolved and all the risks and rewards of ownership have
passed to the buyer. Profit on sales to joint ventures in which we retain an
equity ownership interest results in partial sales treatment in accordance
with the provisions of the Sale of Real Estate ASC Subtopic 360-20, thus
deferring a portion of the gain on our continuing ownership percentage in
the joint ventures.
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One of our investments in joint ventures, KW Property Fund III, L.P.
is, for GAAP purposes, an investment company under the AICPA Audit
and Accounting Guide Investment Companies. Thus, the fund reflects its
investments at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses resulting from
changes in fair value reflected in earnings. We have retained the specialized accounting for the fund pursuant to Retention of Specialized
Accounting for Investments in Consolidation ASC Subtopic 810-10 in
recording our equity in joint venture income from the fund.

subsidiary, many assets that we hold for sale in the ordinary course of business must be reported as a discontinued operation unless we have significant continuing involvement in the operations of the asset after its
disposition. Furthermore, operating profits and losses on such assets are
required to be recognized and reported as operating profits and losses on
discontinued operations in the periods in which they occur. Interest
expense is only allocated to discontinued operations to the extent that the
interest is specific to the component.

Fair Value Measurements—We account for fair value measurements of
financial assets and financial liabilities and for fair value measurements of
nonfinancial items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the
financial statements on a recurring basis under the provisions of ASC
Subtopic 820-10. Subtopic 820-10 defines fair value as the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Noncontrolling Interests—We account for Noncontrolling Interests in accordance with Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements
ASC Subtopic 810-10, which establishes accounting and reporting standards for a parent company’s noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary.
Share-Based Payment Arrangements—We account for our share-based payment arrangements under the provisions of Share-Based Payments ASC
Subtopic 718-10. Compensation cost for employee services received in
exchange for an award of equity instruments are based on the grant-date
fair value of the share-based award that are ultimately settled in our equity.
The costs of employee services are recognized over the period during
which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. Share-based payment arrangements that vest ratably over the
requisite service period are recognized on the straight-line basis and performance awards that vest ratably are recognized on a tranche by tranche
basis over the performance period. Unrecognized compensation costs for
share-based payment arrangements that have been modified are recognized over the original service or performance period.

Goodwill—Goodwill results from the difference between the purchase
price and the fair value of net assets acquired based upon the purchase
method of accounting for business combinations. In accordance with
Accounting for Goodwill ASC Subtopic 350-20, goodwill is no longer
amortized, but instead is reviewed for impairment at least annually by our
management. In testing for impairment in accordance with ASC Subtopic
350-20, goodwill is assigned to the reporting unit based upon the amount
of goodwill generated at the time of acquisition of the businesses by the
reporting unit. An earnings multiple appropriate to the respective reporting unit was applied to the cash basis net operating income of the reporting unit. This process enables a fair approximation of the reporting unit’s
value, which is then compared to the net book value of the reporting unit.
As a result of the evaluation performed of our goodwill as described above,
we have determined that there was no goodwill impairment as of December
31, 2009, 2008 or 2007.

Fair Value Option—We account for financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value on an instrument-by-instrument basis, with changes in fair
value reported in earnings in accordance with the provisions of Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures ASC Subtopic 820-10.
Income Taxes—Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability
method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date. In accordance with Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes FASB Codification Subtopic 605-15, we recognize the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more
likely than not of being sustained. Recognized income tax positions are
measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being
realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the
period in which the change in judgment occurs. We record interest related
to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in selling,
general, and administrative expenses.

Long-Lived Assets—We review our long-lived assets (excluding goodwill)
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance with Impairment
of Long-Lived Assets ASC Subtopic 360-10. Recoverability of assets to be
held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated
by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future
cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets
to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and
reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell,
and are no longer depreciated. The assets and liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale would be presented separately in the appropriate
asset and liability sections of the balance sheet.
Discontinued Operations—We present components as discontinued operations if the operations and cash flows of the component have been or will
be eliminated from the ongoing operations in a disposal transaction where
we will not have any significant continuing involvement in the operations
of the component after the disposal transaction. A component comprises
operations and cash flows that can be clearly distinguished, operationally
and for financial reporting purposes, from the rest of our company.
Because each of our real estate assets generally constitutes a discrete

Results of Operations
The following compares results of operations for the years ended December
31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 and years ended December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

(continued)

Investments Segment Revenues
Rental income decreased 8% to $2.7 million in 2009 from $3.0 million in
2008. Rental income includes rental and other income from properties in
which we hold a controlling interest. The decrease can be primarily attributed to the downtown in the economy and the rental markets.
Sale of real estate in 2009 produced gross revenue of $59.4 million
related to the sale of condominium units and land in southern California.

Our Consolidated Financial Results and Comparison of the
Years Ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
Notwithstanding the current disarray in the capital markets, especially the
debt and equity markets that most significantly affect real estate, we are
uniquely positioned because we are a full service real estate operating company with the ability to take advantage of the opportunities arising from
the current economic difficulties that affect real estate. In 2009, the general shortage of available equity and debt was overcome through our extensive relationships in the capital markets that allowed us to place debt for
those properties that met our criteria as appropriate and potentially profit
producing investments. This ability to properly provide for the capitalization of investments and our extensive relationships in the real estate markets, enables us to acquire well located, income producing properties that
are not distressed from owners that have distressed financial positions.
Current economic conditions have not only made available to our company excellent buying opportunities but also have provided additional
opportunities for our real estate service groups such as our auction group
and our asset and property management divisions where experience and
professional excellence is being sought by distressed real estate owners. We
are sensitive to the challenges of the current economic climate and as a
vertically integrated company, we have the in-house expertise and skill sets
to navigate through these challenging times by taking advantage of opportunities in real estate and the capital markets. We have been implementing
and continue to implement cost-savings measures across our business lines
to maximize our competitive position.
Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were
$86.2 million and $32.2 million, respectively. Total operating expenses for
the same periods were $93.7 million and $32.6 million, respectively. Net
loss attributable to our common stockholders was $15.3 million in 2009
compared to net income of $0.6 million attributable to our common
stockholders in 2008.

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses in 2009 were approximately $52.9 million (not including cost of real estate sold), representing a $20.4 million increase
over 2008. This increase was primarily due to $12.5 million of merger
related costs.
Services Segment Operating Expenses
Commissions and marketing expenses increased to $3.4 million in 2009
from $2.8 million in 2008. The increase in commission expense corresponds to the higher percentage of auction fees in commission revenues
in 2009 compared to 2008, which incur the majority of commission
expenses. As noted above, commission revenue for 2008 included a greater
component of acquisition fees, which incur a relatively minor portion of
expenses. In addition, larger broker fees were paid to outside brokerage
firms in 2009.
   Compensation and related expenses were approximately $24.8 million in 2009, up 16% from $21.3 million in 2008. The increase is primarily due to amortization of the KWI 2009 Stock Option Plan and its
replacement plan, the 2009 Equity Participation Plan. This increase was
offset by a decrease in bonuses due to the decline in operating results as
well as the reduction of staff in 2009.
General and administrative expenses were $6.4 million in 2009, an
increase of 5% from $6.1 million in 2008.
Investments Segment Operating Expenses
Rental operating expenses in 2009 and 2008 were approximately $1.1 million and $1.5 million, respectively, a decrease of 21% from 2008 to 2009.
Rental operating expense includes operating expenses from properties, in
which we hold a controlling interest. The decrease can be attributed to the
sale of two properties in southern California in 2009.
Cost of real estate sold was $41.9 million in 2009 and relates to the
disposition of condominium units and land in southern California. Cost
of real estate sold was zero in 2008 as we did not recognize any sales on
consolidated real estate.

Revenues
Services Segment Revenues
For 2009, management and leasing generated revenues of $19.2 million
(including related party fees of $10.1 million), representing 71% of
our total revenue (not including sales of real estate), compared to
approximately $19.1 million (including approximately $8.4 million in
related party fees) and 59% of total revenue in 2008. Comparing the two
years, management and leasing fees increased 1% which is due to increased
asset management fees associated with new KW Funds and separate
accounts. Management and leasing fees include asset management, construction management, leasing services, engineering and other services to
property owners.
Commissions revenues in 2009 decreased to $4.9 million (including
approximately $0.7 million in related party fees), representing 18% of total
revenues (not including sales of real estate), compared to commission revenues in 2008 of $10.2 million (including related party fees of approximately $4.3 million). Acquisition fees decreased $4.3 million in 2009 as
compared to 2008. The decrease can be attributed primarily to the current
disarray in the debt and equity markets, which has caused a reduction in
the acquisition of commercial and apartment properties and the related
commissions and other acquisition fees revenue. Our brokerage activities
provide clients and our company with development and implementation of
marketing plans, sealed bid auctions and open bid auctions.

Other Operating Expenses
Merger related expenses were $16.1 million in 2009, $12.5 million related
to compensation and related expenses and $3.6 million related to general
and administrative expenses. These are costs incurred in connection with
the Merger.
Depreciation and amortization expense increased to $1.1 million in
2009, a 22% decrease from $0.9 million in 2008. The change was primarily due to the sale of an office building in southern California in 2008 and
a full year of depreciation in 2009 from an apartment building in central
California versus ten months in 2008.
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Commissions revenue in 2008 decreased 22% to $10.2 million (including approximately $4.3 million in related party fees), representing 32% of
total revenues compared to commission revenues in 2007 of $13.2 million
(including related party fees of approximately $8.9 million), representing
39% of total revenue. Our brokerage activities provide clients and our
company with development and implementation of marketing plans,
sealed bid auctions and open bid auctions. The increase in auction activity
resulted in an increase of residential commissions of approximately $1.5
million in 2008. The decrease in transaction activity across all commercial
asset classes led to a decrease of approximately $4.4 million in acquisition,
disposition, and financing fees.

Investments Segment Equity in Joint Venture Income
Investments in joint ventures generated income of $8.0 million in 2009,
a decrease of 21% from income of $10.1 million recorded in 2008, due
primarily to fair value gain of $5.9 million recognized in 2008.
Non-Operating Items
Interest and other income was $0.5 million in 2009, compared to $0.6
million in 2008. The change was due to lower interest income on bank
and escrow deposits, which resulted from decrease in interest rates. In
addition, a note receivable was paid off in the first half of 2008.
Interest expense was $13.2 million in 2009, an increase of 53% compared to $8.6 million for in 2008. The increase was due to interest expense
on the debt incurred for the condominium project acquisition, a full year
of interest on the central California apartment project, and the debt service on the $30 million subordinate convertible loan originated in
November 2008.
Other than temporary impairment on available-for-sale security of
$0.3 million in 2009 represents a decrease of 26% from $0.4 million in
2008. This amount represents the write-down of the value of a stock
investment.
The benefit from income taxes was approximately $4.0 million in 2009,
compared to the income tax provision of approximately $0.6 million in
2008. The change was due to decrease in income before provision for
income taxes.
Net income of approximately $5.7 million attributable to a noncontrolling interest in three properties was recognized in 2009 compared
to net income of $0.1 million in 2008. The increase is primarily due to
the allocation to the noncontrolling interest in the income related to the
sale of the Mercury condominium units.

Investments Segment Revenues
Rental income increased to $3.0 million in 2008 from $100,000 in 2007.
Rental income was 9% of total revenue in 2008. Rental income includes
rental and other revenue from properties in which we have a controlling
interest. The acquisition of several assets, including an office building in
Japan and an apartment project in California, was the main cause for the
increase in rental income.

Operating Expenses
Operating expenses in 2008 were approximately $32.6 million, repre
senting a decrease of 25% from $43.2 million in 2007. The decrease in
operating expenses was primarily due to a decrease in compensation and
related expenses.
Services Segment Operating Expenses
Commissions and marketing expenses increased to $2.8 million in 2008
from $2.1 million in 2007. While most commission and marketing
expenses decreased due to decreased commercial transactions, the auction
commission and business development expenses combined increased by
approximately $1 million.
Compensation and related expenses were approximately $21.3 million
in 2008, down 38% from $34.2 million in 2007. The change was primarily a result of large decreases in bonuses in 2008, offset by an increase
in staff to meet the needs of the increased residential auction and fund
management activities.
General and administrative expenses were $6.1 million in 2008, representing a 5% decrease from 2007 expenses of $6.4 million. The change
was primarily due to the implementation of cost cutting measures in 2008.

Our Consolidated Financial Results and Comparison of the
Years Ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
Our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2008 and the year ended
December 31, 2007 were $32.2 million and $33.4 million, respectively.
Total operating expenses for the same periods were $32.6 million and
$43.2 million, respectively. Operating income included equity in income
of joint ventures of $10.1 million for 2008 and $27.4 million for 2007. Net
income attributable to our common stockholders in 2008 was $0.6 million
compared to net income attributable to our common stockholders of $9.4
million in 2007.

Investments Segment Operating Expenses
Rental operating expense increased to $1.5 million in 2008 from $34,000
in 2007. Rental operating expense includes operating expenses from properties, in which we have controlling interest. The acquisition of several
assets, including an office building in Japan and an apartment project in
California, was the main cause for the increase in rental operating expense.

Revenue
Services Segment Revenues
In 2008, management and leasing generated revenue of $19.1 million
(including related party fees of $8.4 million), representing 59% of our
total revenue, compared to approximately $20.1 million (including related
party fees of approximately $10.3 million) and 60% of total revenue in
2007. Management and leasing fees include asset management, construction management, leasing services, engineering and other services to property operators. Management fees and leasing fees, in aggregate, decreased
by approximately 5%, which was primarily due to the decrease in the total
number of multifamily properties under management. Lower interest rates
and favorable loan terms resulted in an increased number of building sale
transactions in 2007, including some of the buildings managed by our
company. Construction management fees declined primarily due to completion of major renovation projects.

Other Operating Expenses
Depreciation and amortization expense was $0.9 million in 2008, compared to $0.5 million in 2007. The change was due to the acquisition of
an apartment project in California.
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Cash Flows
Net cash used in operating activities totaled $25.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2009, a decrease of $10.6 million as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2008. The change was primarily due to the cost
incurred in connection with the Merger.
Net cash used in operating activities totaled $14.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008, a decrease of $0.1 million as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2007. The change was primarily due to the
decrease in net income and accruals for bonuses and income taxes, offset
by lower equity in joint venture income and no gain on sale of commercial
real estate during the year ended December 31, 2008.
Net cash provided by investing activities totaled approximately $72.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2009, an increase of $169.3 million as compared to the year ended December 31, 2008. The increase was
primarily due to assets acquired in connection with the Merger, decreased
contributions to joint ventures, decreased distributions from joint ventures, and proceeds from sales of real estate in 2009.
Net cash used in investing activities totaled about $96.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2008, an increase of $102.2 million as compared
to the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase was primarily driven
by the use of cash for new investments, which included additional investment in the Japanese joint venture and acquisition of an apartment building, a condominium project, and land in California as well as an office
building in Japan during the year ended December 31, 2008.
Net cash used in financing activities totaled approximately $15.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2009, a decrease of $128.3 million as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2008. The decrease was primarily due to the issuance of stock and the issuance of convertible subordinated debt during the year ended December 31, 2008 as well as increased
distributions to noncontrolling interests during the year ended December
31, 2009. Additionally, there were significant mortgage loan repayments
from the sale of real estate during the year ended December 31, 2009.
Net cash provided by financing activities totaled about $112.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2008, an increase of $94.7 million as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2007. The increase was primarily due to issuance of stock, additional borrowings under lines of credit,
and fewer mortgage loan repayments from the sale of real estate during the
year ended December 31, 2008. The increase was offset by the payments
of dividends to preferred shareholders, which were funded by the combination of cash from operations, borrowings from lines of credit, and proceeds
from the sale of investments.
To the extent that we engage in additional strategic investments, including real estate, note portfolio, or acquisitions of other property management companies, we may need to obtain third-party financing which
could include bank financing or the public sale or private placement of
debt or equity securities. We believe that existing cash and cash equivalents plus capital generated from property management and leasing, brokerage, sales of real estate owned, collections from notes receivable, as well
as our current lines of credit, will provide us with sufficient capital requirements for the foreseeable future.

Investments Segment Equity in Joint Venture Income
Equity in joint venture income totaled approximately $10.1 million in
2008, a decrease of 63% compared to $27.4 million recognized in 2007.
The revenue from joint venture investments includes income from the
operation and sale of numerous real estate investments in the U.S. which
are owned primarily in joint ventures with institutional investor partners.
Six residential investments and one commercial investment were sold in
2008 as compared to ten residential investments, two commercial investments, and one land investment sold in 2007.
Non-Operating Items
Interest and other income was $0.6 million in 2008, compared to $0.9
million in 2007. The change was due to lower interest income on bank and
escrow deposits, which resulted from a decrease in interest rates.
Interest expense was $8.6 million in 2008 compared to $5.1 million in
2007. The increase was primarily due to the acquisition of several assets,
including an office building Japan and apartment project in California
in 2008.
Other-than-temporary impairment on available-for-sale security loss
was $0.4 million and relates to our recognition of an impairment loss on a
stock investment in 2008. There was no impairment loss or income recognized in 2007.
The provision for income taxes was approximately $0.6 million for
2008 compared to $4.4 million in 2007 as a result of the change in income
before provision for income taxes.
There were no sales of consolidated real estate in 2008. In 2007, we
executed the sale of a commercial project in southern California for $39.4
million. Income from discontinued operations included the gain of $5.3
million from this sale.
Net income attributable to the noncontrolling interests was approximately $54,000 in 2008, a decrease of approximately 98% compared to
approximately $2.4 million in 2007. The decrease was related to a noncontrolling interest in a commercial project in southern California, which
was sold in 2007.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our liquidity and capital resources requirements include expenditures
for joint venture investments, real estate held for sale, distressed debt
and working capital needs. Historically, we have not required significant
capital resources to support our brokerage and property management operations. We finance our operations with internally generated funds and
borrowings under our revolving line of credit. Our investments in real
estate are typically financed by mortgage loans secured primarily by that
real estate. These mortgage loans are generally nonrecourse in that, in the
event of default, recourse will be limited to the mortgaged property serving as collateral. In some cases, we guarantee a portion of the loan related
to a joint venture investment, usually until some condition, such as completion of construction or leasing or certain net operating income criteria,
has been met. We do not expect these guarantees to materially affect
liquidity or capital resources.
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Our need, if any, to raise additional funds to meet our capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the success and pace of the
implementation of our strategy for growth. We regularly monitor capital
raising alternatives to be able to take advantage of other available avenues
to support our working capital and investment needs, including strategic
partnerships and other alliances, bank borrowings, and the sale of equity
or debt securities. We expect to meet the repayment obligations of notes
payable and borrowings under lines of credit from cash generated by our
business activities, including the sale of assets and the refinancing of debt.
We intend to retain earnings to finance our growth and, therefore, do not
anticipate paying dividends.

Under our current joint venture strategy, we generally contribute property, expertise, and typically a fully funded initial cash contribution
(without commitment to additional funding by us). Capital required for
additional improvements and supporting operations during lease-up and
stabilization periods is generally obtained at the time of acquisition via
debt financing or third-party investors. Accordingly, we generally do
not have significant capital commitments with unconsolidated entities.
Infrequently, there may be some circumstances when we, usually with the
other members of the joint venture entity, may be required to contribute
additional capital for a limited period of time. We believe that we have
the capital resources, generated from our business activities and borrow
ing capacity, to finance any such capital requirements, and do not believe
that any additional capital contributions to joint ventures will materially
affect liquidity.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments
At December 31, 2009, our contractual cash obligations, including debt, lines of credit, and operating leases included the following:
Payments Due by Period

Contractual obligations
Borrowings:(1)
Notes payable
Borrowings under lines of credit
Mortgage loans payable
Mandatorily convertible debt
Subordinated debt
Total borrowings
Operating leases
Total contractual cash obligations

Total

Less Than
1 Year

1–3 Years

4–5 Years

$ 26,133,000
10,000,000
23,968,000
30,000,000
40,000,000

$ 5,600,000
—
21,190,000
—
—

$11,200,000
10,000,000
2,778,000
—
—

$ 9,333,000
—
—
—
—

130,101,000

26,790,000

23,978,000

9,333,000

After
5 Years

$

—
—
—
30,000,000
40,000,000
70,000,000

8,895,000

1,765,000

2,665,000

2,165,000

2,300,000

$138,996,000

$28,555,000

$26,643,000

$11,498,000

$72,300,000

(1) See Notes 9–13 of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Figures do not include scheduled interest payments. Assuming each debt obligation is held until maturity,
we estimate that we will make the following interest payments: Less than 1 year—$9,230,000; 1–3 years—$12,961,000; 4–5 years—$11,774,000; after 5 years—$54,803,000.
The interest payments on variable rate debt have been calculated at the interest rate in effect at December 31, 2009.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

We have provided s associated with loans secured by assets held in various
joint venture partnerships. The maximum potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) we could be required to make under the guarantees
was approximately $35 million and $46 million at December 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, respectively. The guarantees expire by the year end of
2011 and our performance under the guarantees would be required to the
extent there is a shortfall in liquidation between the principal amount of
the loan and the net sales proceeds of the property. If we were to become
obligated to perform on these guarantees, it could have an adverse affect
on our financial condition.

Inflation has not had a significant impact on the results of operations of
our company in recent years and is not anticipated to have a significant
impact in the foreseeable future. Our exposure to market risk from changing prices consists primarily of fluctuations in rental rates of commercial
and residential properties, market interest rates on residential mortgages
and debt obligations and real estate property values. The revenues associated with the commercial services businesses are impacted by fluctuations
in interest rates, lease rates, real property values and the availability of
space and competition in the market place. Commercial service revenues
are derived from a broad range of services that are primarily transaction
driven and are therefore volatile in nature and highly competitive. The
revenues of the property management operations with respect to rental
properties are highly dependent upon the aggregate rents of the properties
managed, which are affected by rental rates and building occupancy rates.
Rental rate increases are dependent upon market conditions and the competitive environments in the respective locations of the properties.
Employee compensation is the principal cost element of property management. Economic trends in 2009 were characterized by general decrease in
commercial leasing volume in the U.S.
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Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures About Market Risk

(continued)

Interest Rate Risk
We have established an interest rate management policy, which attempts to
minimize our overall cost of debt, while taking into consideration the
earnings implications associated with the volatility of short-term interest
rates. As part of this policy, we have elected to maintain a combination of
variable and fixed rate debt.

The primary market risk exposure of our company relates to changes in
interest rates in connection with our short-term borrowings, some of which
bear interest at variable rates based on lender’s base rate, prime rate, and
LIBOR plus an applicable borrowing margin. These borrowings do not
give rise to a significant interest rate risk because they have short maturities. Historically, we have not experienced material gains or losses due to
interest rate changes.

The tables below represent contractual balances of our financial instruments at the expected maturity dates as well as the fair value at December 31,
2009, and December 31, 2008. The expected maturity categories take into consideration actual amortization of principal and do not take into consideration reinvestment of cash. The weighted average interest rate for the various assets and liabilities presented are actual as of December 31, 2009, and
December 31, 2008. We closely monitor the fluctuation in interest rates, and if rates were to increase significantly, we believe that we would be able to
either hedge the change in the interest rate or to refinance the loans with fixed interest rate debt. All instruments included in this analysis are
non-trading.
Principal Maturing In:
(in thousands)

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

Thereafter

Total

Fair Value
December 31,
2009

Interest rate sensitive assets
Cash equivalents
Average interest rate
Variable rate receivables
Average interest rate
Fixed rate receivables
Average interest rate

$57,784
0.50%
—
—
7,185
13.12%

—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—

$ 57,784
0.50%
—
—
7,185
13.12%

$57,784
0.50%
—
—
7,185
—

   Total

$64,969

—

—

—

—

—

$ 64,969

$64,969

—

—

—

—

—

Weighted average interest rate

1.87%

Interest rate sensitive liabilities
Variable rate borrowings
Average interest rate
Fixed rate borrowings
Average interest rate

$ 2,590
1.92%
18,600
6.16%

$10,000
3.55%
—
—

—
—
$2,778
2.18%

—
—
—
—

$26,133
4.00%
—
—

   Total

$21,190

$10,000

$2,778

—

$26,133

Weighted average interest rate

5.64%

3.55%

2.18%

—

4.00%

1.87%

—

—
—
$70,000
8.18%

$ 38,723
3.74%
91,378
7.59%

$38,723
—
91,378
—

$70,000

$130,101

8.18%

6.44%

$130,101
—

criterion unless those rights are unilaterally exercisable by a single party
or related party group. The ASU also revises the criteria for determining
whether fees paid by an entity to a decision maker or another service provider are a variable interest in the entity and revises the Topic 810 scope
characteristic that identifies an entity as a VIE if the equity-at-risk investors as a group do not have the right to control the entity through their
equity interests to address the impact of kick-out rights and participating
rights on the analysis. Finally, the ASU adds a new requirement to reconsider whether an entity is a VIE if the holders of the equity investment at
risk as a group lose the power, through the rights of those interests, to
direct the activities that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance, and requires a company to reassess on an ongoing basis whether
it is deemed to be the primary beneficiary of a VIE. ASU 2009-17 is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2009 and may not be early
adopted. We expect that the adoption of ASU 2009-17 will not have a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
The FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2009-17,
Consolidations (Topic 810): Improvements to Financial Reporting by
Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest Entities (FASB Statement No.
167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)) in December 2009.
ASU 2009-17, which amends the Variable Interest Entity (“VIE”)
Subsections of ASC Subtopic 810-10, Consolidation—Overall, revises the
test for determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE from a primarily
quantitative risks and rewards calculation based on the VIE’s expected
losses and expected residual returns to a primarily qualitative analysis
based on identifying the party or related party group (if any) with (a) the
power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and (b) the obligation to absorb losses of, or the right
to receive benefits from, the VIE that could potentially be significant to
the VIE. The ASU requires kick-out rights and participating rights to be
ignored in evaluating whether a variable interest holder meets the power
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Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act.
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, we
are currently documenting and evaluating the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting based on the criteria in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organi
zations of the Treadway Commission.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting
On November 13, 2009, we acquired KWI, an operating company,
and KWI’s management immediately took full responsibility for all
accounting and finance functions for us. This constituted a significant
change to our internal controls over financial reporting in the quarter
ended December 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2009 and for the year then
ended KWI represented approximately 85% of our consolidated assets
and approximately 100% of our consolidated revenue. Because the only
meaningful internal controls over financial reporting that existed as of
December 31, 2009 belonged to those of the newly acquired operating
company, and there has not been sufficient time to document and test
those controls, this report does not include a management’s report regarding internal controls over financial reporting. In addition, since KWI was
acquired by us near the end of 2009, KWI is not required to make an
assessment of its internal controls over financial reporting for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2009.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.:
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of the other auditors,
the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009
and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive loss, equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2009. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements
of KW Residential, LLC, (a 35 percent owned investee company). The
Company’s investment in KW Residential, LLC at December 31, 2009,
was $91,276,000, and its equity in joint venture income of KW Residential,
LLC was $5,949,000 for the year 2009. The financial statements of KW
Residential, LLC were audited by other auditors whose report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it related to the amounts
included for KW Residential, LLC, is based solely on the report of the
other auditors.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the

Los Angeles, California
March 16, 2010
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

2009

2008

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable—related parties
Income tax receivable
Notes receivable
Notes receivable—related parties
Investments in real estate, net
Investments in real estate available for sale
Investments in joint ventures ($19,590,000 and $15,088,000 carried at fair value as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively)
Other assets
Goodwill

$ 57,784,000
887,000
4,278,000
6,848,000
541,000
6,644,000
40,581,000
2,472,000

$ 25,831,000
1,091,000
4,659,000
2,368,000
43,000
3,755,000
48,727,000
—

185,252,000
7,005,000
23,965,000

142,188,000
4,210,000
23,965,000

   Total assets

$336,257,000

$256,837,000

$

$

Assets

Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Accrued salaries and benefits
Deferred tax liability
Notes payable
Borrowings under line of credit
Mortgage loans payable
Convertible subordinated debt
Junior subordinated debentures
   Total liabilities

860,000
8,648,000
4,401,000
15,439,000
26,133,000
10,000,000
23,968,000
27,472,000
40,000,000

359,000
7,008,000
2,775,000
9,470,000
21,188,000
13,500,000
29,548,000
27,187,000
40,000,000

156,921,000

151,035,000

Equity
Preferred stock, $.0001 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, 0 shares issued at
December 31, 2009 and 2008
Common stock, $0.0001 par value: 80,000,000 and 73,000,000 shares authorized, 41,177,658
and 26,387,199 shares issued, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income

—

—

4,000
155,878,000
18,829,000
2,603,000

3,000
60,079,000
45,467,000
2,000

   Total Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests

177,314,000
2,022,000

105,551,000
251,000

   Total equity

179,336,000

105,802,000

$336,257,000

$256,837,000

   Total liabilities and equity
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss

Year Ended December 31,

2009

2008

2007

$ 9,026,000
10,138,000
4,204,000
727,000
52,699,000
6,698,000
2,743,000

$10,671,000
8,380,000
5,906,000
4,295,000
—
—
2,973,000

$ 9,836,000
10,306,000
4,257,000
8,896,000
—
—
98,000

86,235,000

32,225,000

33,393,000

3,411,000
24,789,000
12,468,000
36,179,000
5,752,000
6,351,000
3,652,000
1,122,000
1,148,000

2,827,000
21,292,000
—
—
—
6,074,000
—
920,000
1,458,000

2,097,000
34,151,000
—
—
—
6,393,000
—
505,000
34,000

Total operating expenses

94,872,000

32,571,000

43,180,000

Equity in joint venture income

8,019,000

10,097,000

27,433,000

9,751,000

17,646,000

Revenue

Management and leasing fees
Management and leasing fees—related party
Commissions
Commissions—related party
Sale of real estate
Sale of real estate—related party
Rental and other income
Total revenue

Operating Expenses

Commission and marketing expenses
Compensation and related expenses
Merger-related compensation and related expenses
Cost of real estate sold
Cost of real estate sold—related party
General and administrative
Merger-related general and administrative
Depreciation and amortization
Rental operating expense

Operating income

(618,000)

Non-Operating Income (Expense)

Interest income
Interest income—related party
Interest expense
Other than temporary impairment on available-for-sale security

102,000
400,000
(13,174,000)
(328,000)

221,000
341,000
(8,596,000)
(445,000)

487,000
378,000
(5,090,000)
—

(Loss) income before benefit from (provision for) income taxes
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes

(13,618,000)
3,961,000

1,272,000
(605,000)

13,421,000
(4,384,000)

(Loss) income from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax

(9,657,000)
—

667,000
—

9,037,000
2,797,000

Net (loss) income
Net income attributable to the noncontrolling interests

(9,657,000)
(5,679,000)

667,000
(54,000)

11,834,000
(2,441,000)

(15,336,000)
2,601,000

613,000
240,000

9,393,000
(238,000)

Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax
Total comprehensive (loss) income
Basic (loss) income per share attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders
(Loss) income from continuing operations attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
 Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, attributable to
Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.

$(12,735,000)

$

853,000

$

(0.57)

$

0.03

$

(0.57)

$

0.03

—

Weighted average shares outstanding for basic (loss) income per share

26,891,304

Diluted (loss) income per share attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders
(Loss) income from continuing operations attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
 Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, attributable to
Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.

$

(0.57)
26,891,304

$

—
22,892,498
$

—
$

Weighted average shares outstanding for diluted income (loss) per share

(0.57)

$ 9,155,000

0.03

0.08
$

0.03

24,310,299

0.49

19,258,613
$

—
$

0.41

0.37
0.07

$

0.44

21,380,174

Amounts attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders
(Loss) income from continuing operations, net of tax
Discontinued operations, net of tax

$(15,336,000)
—

$

613,000
—

$ 7,915,000
1,478,000

Net (loss) income

$(15,336,000)

$

613,000

$ 9,393,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Equity

Shares

Amount

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Balance, January 1, 2007
Issuance of common stock—exercise
of stock options
Repurchase of common stock
Amortization of equity compensation
Other comprehensive loss:
 Foreign currency translation,
net of tax of $29,000
 Unrealized loss on marketable
security, net of tax of $129,000
Net income
Contributions from noncontrolling
interests
Distributions to noncontrolling
interests

21,620,920

$2,000

$ 11,720,000

Common Stock

209,170
(459,720)
—

—
—
—

236,000
(2,996,000)
1,015,000

Retained
Earnings
$ 37,725,000
—
—
—

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Income
$

—
—
—
—

Noncontrolling
Interests
$

  156,000

Total
$ 49,603,000

—
—
—

236,000
(2,996,000)
1,015,000

—

—

—

—

(44,000)

—

(44,000)

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
9,393,000

(194,000)
—

—
2,441,000

(194,000)
11,834,000

—

—

—

—

—

1,615,000

1,615,000

—

—

—

—

—

(3,993,000)

(3,993,000)

Balance, December 31, 2007
Issuance of common stock
Issuance of common stock—exercise
of stock options
Repurchase of common stock
Amortization of equity compensation
Discount on convertible subordinated
debt
Other comprehensive loss:
 Foreign currency translation,
net of tax of $160,000
Dividends paid
Net income
Contributions from noncontrolling
interests
Distributions to noncontrolling
interests

21,370,370
5,598,982

2,000
1,000

9,975,000
52,353,000

47,118,000
—

—

—

—

Balance, December 31, 2008
Proceeds from issuance of common
stock in connection with the Merger
Issuance of common stock—exercise
of stock options
Repurchase of common stock
Stock compensation expense
Common stock issued under 2009
Equity Participation Plan
2009 Equity Participation Plan
replacement payment
Other comprehensive loss:
 Foreign currency translation,
net of tax of $1,472,000
 Unrealized loss on marketable
security, net of tax of $129,000
Dividends paid
Additional shares to pre-Merger
preferred shareholders
Accretion of common stock beneficial
conversion
Net (loss) income
Contributions from noncontrolling
interests
Distributions to noncontrolling
interests

26,387,199

3,000

60,079,000

12,820,215

1,000

89,006,000
59,000
(3,690,000)
3,857,000

Balance, December 31, 2009

42,785
(624,938)
—

(238,000)
—

219,000
—

57,076,000
52,354,000

—
—
—

93,000
(6,170,000)
1,015,000

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

93,000
(6,170,000)
1,015,000

—

—

2,813,000

—

—

—

2,813,000

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

240,000
—
—

—
—
54,000

—

—

—

—

482,000

—

—

(504,000)

45,467,000

2,000

251,000

105,802,000

—

—

—

89,007,000

—
—
—

—
—
—

—
—
—

59,000
(3,690,000)
3,857,000

—

—

—

—

—

—

(1,500,000)

—

2,407,000

—

2,407,000
194,000
(3,235,000)

55,449
(442,648)
—

—
—
—

—

—
(2,264,000)
613,000
—

240,000
(2,264,000)
667,000
482,000
(504,000)

2,357,443

—

—

—

—

—

—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
(3,235,000)

194,000
—

—
—

—

—

7,879,000

(7,879,000)

—

—

—
—

—
—

188,000
—

(188,000)
(15,336,000)

—
—

—
5,679,000

—
(9,657,000)

—

—

—

—

6,804,000

6,804,000

(1,500,000)

—

—

—

—

—

—

41,177,658

$4,000

$155,878,000

$ 18,829,000

$2,603,000

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$    2,022,000

—

—

(10,712,000)
$179,336,000
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,

2009

2008

2007

667,000

$ 11,834,000

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net (loss) income
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to net cash used in operating activities:
Gain from sale of real estate
Gain from sale of real estate—related party
Note receivable and accrued interest forgiven in Merger
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Amortization of deferred loan costs
Amortization of beneficial conversion of convertible subordinated debt
Equity in joint venture income
Provision for notes receivable
Amortization of deferred compensation
Stock compensation expense
2009 Equity Participation Plan replacement payment
Other than temporary impairment on available-for-sale security, net of tax
Change in assets and liabilities:
   Accounts receivable
   Accounts receivable—related party
   Income tax receivable
   Operating distributions from joint ventures
   Other assets
   Accounts payable
   Accrued expenses and other liabilities
   Accrued salaries and benefits
   Income taxes payable
    Net cash flow used in operating activities

$ (9,657,000)

$

(16,520,000)
(946,000)
4,281,000
1,122,000
4,497,000
917,000
285,000
(8,019,000)
—
1,543,000
2,314,000
(1,500,000)
194,000

—
—
—
920,000
3,372,000
658,000
—
(10,097,000)
—
1,015,000
—
—
—

(5,269,000)
—
—
1,242,000
918,000
296,000
—
(27,433,000)
159,000
1,015,000
—
—
—

204,000
381,000
(4,480,000)
514,000
(2,893,000)
501,000
410,000
1,626,000
—

3,144,000
(3,521,000)
(2,368,000)
294,000
(1,339,000)
(374,000)
1,816,000
(4,450,000)
(4,406,000)

(2,335,000)
1,442,000
—
885,000
(979,000)
337,000
344,000
2,830,000
(95,000)

(25,226,000)

(14,669,000)

(14,809,000)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Settlements of notes receivable
Additions to notes receivable
Settlements of notes receivable from sale of real estate
Additions to notes receivable from sale of real estate
Settlements of notes receivable—related party
Additions to notes receivable—related party
Net proceeds from sale of real estate held for sale
Purchases of and additions to real estate
Assets acquired in merger
Distributions from joint ventures
Contributions to joint ventures
    Net cash flow provided by (used in) investing activities

302,000
(500,000)
1,858,000
(2,663,000)
2,935,000
(8,774,000)
58,027,000
(35,800,000)
89,181,000
2,374,000
(34,054,000)

26,000
—
—
6,000
(300,000)
5,181,000
(41,460,000)
—
12,903,000
(72,729,000)

72,886,000

(96,373,000)

2,667,000
(144,000)
—
—
(7,128,000)
37,705,000
(38,458,000)
—
39,390,000
(28,193,000)
5,839,000
(continued)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(continued)

Year Ended December 31,

2009

2008

2007

Cash flow from financing activities:
Borrowings under notes payable
Repayment of notes payable
Borrowings under lines of credit
Repayment of lines of credit
Borrowings under mortgage loans payable
Repayment of mortgage loans payable
Issuance of convertible subordinated debt
Issuance of junior subordinated debentures
Debt issue costs
Issuance of common stock
Repurchase of common stock
Dividends paid
Contributions from noncontrolling interests
Distributions to noncontrolling interests
    Net cash flow (used in) provided by financing activities

$ 37,059,000
(32,114,000)
20,500,000
(24,000,000)
30,286,000
(35,866,000)
—
—
(798,000)
59,000
(3,690,000)
(3,235,000)
6,804,000
(10,712,000)

$ 20,161,000
(8,973,000)
47,957,000
(39,457,000)
30,316,000
(10,852,000)
30,000,000
—
(518,000)
52,447,000
(6,170,000)
(2,264,000)
482,000
(504,000)

$ 10,000,000
(12,810,000)
27,582,000
(44,289,000)
36,934,000
(32,850,000)
—
40,000,000
(1,543,000)
236,000
(2,996,000)
—
1,615,000
(3,993,000)

(15,707,000)

112,625,000

17,886,000

31,953,000
25,831,000

1,583,000
24,248,000

8,916,000
15,332,000

$ 57,784,000

$ 25,831,000

$ 24,248,000

$

$

$

    Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
    Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing activities:
Unrealized loss on marketable security, net of tax of $129,000
Foreign currency translation, net of tax of $1,472,000
Beneficial conversion of convertible subordinated debt

194,000
2,407,000
—

—
240,000
2,813,000

(194,000)
(44,000)
—

In 2009, the debt on a piece of land that was sold was assumed by the buyer resulting in a decrease of proceeds from the sale of real estate of $2,025,000
and reduction of repayment of mortgage loans payable of $2,025,000.
In 2008, the Company converted notes receivable from various executives and directors of the Company related to a joint venture investment in Japan
into equity in the Japanese joint venture resulting in an increase in investments in joint ventures of $4,397,000 and a decrease in notes receivable of
$4,397,000.

Supplemental cash flow information:
Year Ended December 31,

2009
Cash paid (refunded) during the year for:
Interest
Interest capitalized
Income taxes

$ 11,618,000
—
(4,130,000)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2008

2007

$ 6,945,000
999,000
4,000,000

$ 6,067,000
519,000
5,310,000
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Note 1—Organization

Revenue Recognition—Management and leasing fees and commissions revenues are accounted for in accordance with the provisions of Revenue
Recognition ASC Subtopic 605-10. Management fees for property and
asset management are recognized over time as earned based upon the
terms of the management agreement. Leasing fees that are payable upon
tenant occupancy, payment of rent or other events beyond KennedyWilson’s control are recognized upon the occurrence of such events. In the
case of real estate sales commissions, this generally occurs when escrow
closes. In accordance with the guidelines established for Reporting
Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent in the ASC Subtopic
605-45, Kennedy-Wilson records commission revenues and expenses on a
gross basis. Of the criteria listed in the Subtopic 605-45, Kennedy-Wilson
is the primary obligor in the transaction, does not have inventory risk,
performs all, or part, of the service, has credit risk, and has wide latitude in
establishing the price of services rendered and discretion in selection of
agents and determination of service specifications.
Sales of real estate are recognized at the close of escrow when title to the
real property passes to the buyer. Kennedy-Wilson follows the requirements for profit recognition as set forth by the Sale of Real Estate ASC
Subtopic 360-20.

Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its sub
sidiaries (“Kennedy-Wilson” or “KWH”), provide various commercial
and residential real estate services including property management, asset
management, brokerage and marketing in the U.S. and Japan primarily to
institutional investors, financial institutions, pension funds, and developers. Kennedy-Wilson, principally through joint venture investments, also
acquires, renovates and resells commercial and residential real estate, and
invests in discounted loan portfolios.
On November 13, 2009, the stockholders of Prospect Acquisition
Company (“Prospect”) approved a merger with Kennedy-Wilson, Inc.
(“KWI”), whereby KWI became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Prospect,
which was renamed Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. (the “Merger”). The
directors and officers of KWI immediately before the Merger became the
directors and officers of Kennedy-Wilson, except that one of the KWI
directors immediately before the Merger resigned and was replaced by a
director from Prospect (see Note 3).
Kennedy-Wilson has evaluated all subsequent events through the date
that the financial statements are available for issuance.

Note 2—Basis of Presentation and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies

Investments in Joint Ventures—Kennedy-Wilson has a number of joint venture interests, generally ranging from 5% to 15% (but occasionally up to
50%), that were formed to acquire, manage, develop and/or sell real estate.
Investments in joint ventures which Kennedy-Wilson does not control are
accounted for under the equity method of accounting as Kennedy-Wilson
can exercise significant influence, but does not have the ability to control
the joint venture. An investment in joint ventures is recorded at its initial
investment plus or minus Kennedy-Wilson’s share of undistributed income
or loss and less distributions. Declines in value of Kennedy-Wilson’s investment in joint ventures that are other than temporary are recognized when
evidence indicates that such a decline has occurred in accordance with
Equity Method Investments ASC Subtopic 322-10.
Profit on the sales of real estate held by joint ventures that have con
tinuing involvement are deferred until such time that the continuing
involvement has been resolved and all the risks and rewards of ownership
have passed to the buyer. Profit on sales to joint ventures in which
Kennedy-Wilson retains an equity ownership interest results in partial
sales treatment in accordance with Sale of Real Estate ASC Subtopic
360-20, thus deferring a portion of the gain on Kennedy-Wilson’s continuing ownership percentage in the joint ventures.
One of Kennedy-Wilson’s investments in joint ventures, KW Property
Fund III, L.P. (the Fund) is, for GAAP purposes, an investment company
under the AICPA Audit and Accounting Guide Investment Companies.
Thus, the Fund reflects its investments at fair value, with unrealized gains
and losses resulting from changes in fair value reflected in earnings.
Kennedy-Wilson has retained the specialized accounting for the Fund
pursuant to Retention of Specialized Accounting for Investments in
Consolidation ASC Subtopic 810-10 in recording its equity in joint venture income from the Fund.

Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of Kennedy-Wilson and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. In addition, Kennedy-Wilson evaluates its relationships with
other entities to identify whether they are variable interest entities as
defined by FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic
810—Consolidation and to assess whether it is the primary beneficiary of
such entities. If the determination is made that Kennedy-Wilson is the
primary beneficiary, then that entity is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Variable Interest Entities ASC
Subtopic 810-10. The ownership of the other interest holders of consolidated subsidiaries is reflected as noncontrolling interests.
Use of Estimates—The preparation of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions
affect the amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosure about contingent assets and liabilities, and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses. Such estimates include the value of accounts and notes receivable, long-lived assets, debt, goodwill, investment in joint ventures, and
legal contingencies. These estimates and assumptions are based on management’s best estimates and judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience
and other factors, including the current economic environment, which
management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. We adjust
such estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate.
Illiquid credit markets, volatile energy markets, and declines in consumer
spending have combined to increase the uncertainty inherent in such estimates and assumptions. As future events and their effects cannot be determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these
estimates. Changes in those estimates resulting from continuing changes
in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial statements
in future periods.
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Fair Value Measurements—Kennedy-Wilson accounts for fair value meas
urements of financial assets and financial liabilities and for fair value
measurements of nonfinancial items that are recognized or disclosed at fair
value in the financial statements on a recurring basis under the provisions
of ASC Subtopic 820-10. Subtopic 820-10 defines fair value as the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Notes Receivable—Kennedy-Wilson accounts for any impairment to the
basis of notes receivable in accordance with Accounting by Creditors for
Impaired Loans ASC Subtopic 310-10. Accordingly, an impaired loan is
measured based upon the present value of expected future cash flows,
discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or, if readily determinable,
the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the
loan is collateral dependant.

Goodwill—Goodwill results from the difference between the purchase
price and the fair value of net assets acquired based upon the purchase
method of accounting for business combinations. In accordance with
Accounting for Goodwill ASC Subtopic 350-20, goodwill is no longer
amortized, but instead is reviewed for impairment at least annually by
Kennedy-Wilson’s management. In testing for impairment in accordance
with FASB Codification Subtopic 350-20, goodwill is assigned to the
reporting unit based upon the amount of goodwill generated at the time
of acquisition of the businesses by the reporting unit. An earnings multiple
appropriate to the respective reporting unit is applied to the cash basis
net operating income of the reporting unit. This process enables a fair
approximation of the reporting unit’s value, which is then compared to
the net book value of the reporting unit. As a result of the evaluation
performed of its goodwill as described above, Kennedy-Wilson has determined that there was no goodwill impairment as of December 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments—The estimated fair value of KennedyWilson’s financial instruments is determined using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. Considerable judgment,
however, is necessary to interpret market data and develop the related estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts that could be realized upon disposition of the financial instruments. The use of different market assumptions
or estimation methodologies may have a material impact on the estimated
fair value amounts. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities, accrued salaries and benefits, deferred and accrued income taxes, and
income tax receivable approximate fair value due to their short-term
maturities. The carrying value of notes receivable (excluding related party
notes receivable as they are presumed not to be an arm’s length trans
action) approximate fair value as they are negotiated based upon the fair
value of loans with similar characteristics. Bank lines of credit and debt
approximate fair value as the terms are comparable to the terms currently
being offered to Kennedy-Wilson.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
all highly liquid investments purchased with maturities of three months
or less.

Noncontrolling Interests—Kennedy-Wilson accounts for Noncontrolling
Interests in accordance with Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements ASC Subtopic 810-10, which establishes accounting
and reporting standards for a parent company’s noncontrolling interest in
a subsidiary.

Long-Lived Assets—Kennedy-Wilson reviews its long-lived assets (excluding
goodwill) whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable in accordance with
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets ASC Subtopic 360-10. Recoverability of
assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected
to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized in the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of
the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value
less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. The assets and liabilities of
a disposal group classified as held for sale would be presented separately in
the appropriate asset and liability sections of the balance sheet.

Capitalized Interest—Kennedy-Wilson capitalizes interest in accordance
with Capitalization of Interest Cost FASB Codification Subtopic 835-20
for assets that are undergoing development or entitlement activities in
preparation for their planned principal operations. For qualifying equity
investments, interest is capitalized in accordance with Capitalization of
Interest Cost in Financial Statements That Include Investments Accounted
for Under the Equity Method FASB Codification Subtopic 835-20. An
appropriate interest rate is applied to Kennedy-Wilson’s cash investment in
the qualifying asset. The interest is credited against interest expense and
added to the basis in the investment. Interest is capitalized when the development or entitlement activity commences and ceases when the investment has begun its planned principal operations.

Discontinued Operations—Kennedy-Wilson presents components as discontinued operations if the operations and cash flows of the component have
been or will be eliminated from the ongoing operations in a disposal transaction where Kennedy-Wilson will not have any significant continuing
involvement in the operations of the component after the disposal trans
action. A component comprises operations and cash flows that can be
clearly distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes,
from the rest of Kennedy-Wilson. Because each of our real estate assets
generally constitutes a discrete subsidiary, many assets that we hold for sale
in the ordinary course of business must be reported as a discontinued operation unless we have significant continuing involvement in the operations
of the asset after its disposition. Furthermore, operating profits and losses
on such assets are required to be recognized and reported as operating
profits and losses on discontinued operations in the periods in which they
occur. Interest expense is only allocated to discontinued operations to the
extent that the interest is specific to the component.

Guarantees—Kennedy-Wilson has certain guarantees associated with loans
secured by assets held in various joint venture partnerships. The maximum
potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) Kennedy-Wilson
could be required to make under the guarantees was approximately $35
million and $46 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
The guarantees expire through 2011 and Kennedy-Wilson’s performance
under the guarantees would be required to the extent there is a shortfall in
liquidation between the principal amount of the loan and the net sales
proceeds of the property. Based upon Kennedy-Wilson’s evaluation of
guarantees under Estimated Fair Value of Guarantees ASC Subtopic
460-10, the estimated fair value of guarantees made as of December 31,
2009 and 2008 is immaterial.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Recent Accounting Pronouncements—The FASB issued Accounting Stand
ards Update (“ASU”) 2009-17, Consolidations (Topic 810): Improvements
to Financial Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest
Entities (FASB Statement No. 167, Amendments to FASB Interpretation
No. 46(R)) in December 2009. ASU 2009-17, which amends the Variable
Interest Entity (“VIE”) Subsections of ASC Subtopic 810-10, Consolidation—
Overall, revises the test for determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE
from a primarily quantitative risks and rewards calculation based on the
VIE’s expected losses and expected residual returns to a primarily qualitative analysis based on identifying the party or related party group (if any)
with (a) the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact
the VIE’s economic performance and (b) the obligation to absorb losses of,
or the right to receive benefits from, the VIE that could potentially be
significant to the VIE. The ASU requires kick-out rights and participating
rights to be ignored in evaluating whether a variable interest holder meets
the power criterion unless those rights are unilaterally exercisable by a single
party or related party group. The ASU also revises the criteria for determining whether fees paid by an entity to a decision maker or another service
provider are a variable interest in the entity and revises the Topic 810 scope
characteristic that identifies an entity as a VIE if the equity-at-risk investors
as a group do not have the right to control the entity through their equity
interests to address the impact of kick-out rights and participating rights
on the analysis. Finally, the ASU adds a new requirement to reconsider
whether an entity is a VIE if the holders of the equity investment at risk as
a group lose the power, through the rights of those interests, to direct the
activities that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance,
and requires a company to reassess on an ongoing basis whether it is
deemed to be the primary beneficiary of a VIE. ASU 2009-17 is effective
for periods beginning after December 15, 2009 and may not be early
adopted. Kennedy-Wilson expects that the adoption of ASU 2009-17 will
not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Concentration of Credit Risk—Financial instruments that subject KennedyWilson to credit risk consist primarily of accounts and notes receivable
and cash equivalents. Credit risk is generally diversified due to the large
number of entities composing Kennedy-Wilson’s customer base and their
geographic dispersion throughout the U.S. Kennedy-Wilson performs
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and debtors. Cash and cash
equivalents are invested in institutions insured by government agencies.
Certain accounts contain balances in excess of the insured limits.
Earnings Per Share—Basic earnings per share is computed based upon the
weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during
the periods presented. Diluted earnings per share is computed based upon
the weighted average number of shares of common stock and potentially
dilutive securities outstanding during the periods presented. The weighted
average number of shares outstanding for the diluted earnings per share
computation also includes the dilutive impact of options, unvested shares,
warrants, and convertible securities and warrants which were outstanding
during the period calculated by the “treasury stock” method.
Share-Based Payment Arrangements—Kennedy-Wilson accounts for its
share-based payment arrangements under the provisions of Share-Based
Payments ASC Subtopic 718-10. Compensation cost for employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments is based on the
grant-date fair value of the share-based award that is ultimately settled in
equity of Kennedy-Wilson. The cost of employee services is recognized
over the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for
the share-based payment award. Share-based payment arrangements that
vest ratably over the requisite service period are recognized on the straightline basis and performance awards that vest ratably are recognized on a
tranche by tranche basis over the performance period. Unrecognized compensation costs for share-based payment arrangements that have been
modified are recognized over the original service or performance period.
Fair Value Option—Kennedy-Wilson accounts for financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
with changes in fair value reported in earnings in accordance with the
provisions of Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC Subtopic
820-10.

Reclassifications—Certain balances that were included in the income tax
receivable account have been reclassified to the deferred tax liability
account for 2008 in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Note 3—Acquisition

Income Taxes—Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability
method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date. In accordance with Accounting
for Uncertainty in Income Taxes FASB Codification Subtopic 605-15,
Kennedy-Wilson recognizes the effect of income tax positions only if those
positions are more likely than not of being sustained. Recognized income
tax positions are measured at the largest amount that is greater than 50%
likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are
reflected in the period in which the change in judgment occurs.
Kennedy-Wilson records interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in
interest expense and penalties in selling, general, and administrative
expenses.

On November 13, 2009, KWI merged with Prospect, a blank check company formed for the purpose of acquiring control of, through a merger,
capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, reverse capitalization, stock purchase, reorganization or other similar business combination, one or more
operating businesses or assets in the financial services industry. The resulting merged entity is KWH which continues the business operations of
KWI, including all of their personnel and management. Consequently, the
Merger achieved Prospect’s business combination purpose while providing
$89 million in cash for the newly formed KWH to take immediate actions
to acquire real estate and loans secured by real estate in the currently distressed real estate markets in the United States and abroad.
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The Merger was accounted for as a reverse acquisition in accordance
with Business Combinations ASC 805-40, because the stockholders of
KWI immediately prior to the consummation of the Merger obtained
effective control of Prospect, immediately following completion of the
Merger, through (1) their stockholder interest comprising the largest single
control block of shares in the post-Merger company, (2) a majority of the
members of the board of directors of the post-Merger company being comprised of KWI directors (initially, six directors of KWI and one director of
Prospect), and (3) all of the senior executive officers of the post-Merger
company being comprised of KWI executive officers. Accordingly, the
assets, liabilities and results of operations of KWI have become the historical financial statements of Prospect at the closing of the Merger, and
Prospect’s assets (primarily cash and cash equivalents), liabilities and
results of operations have been consolidated with KWI beginning on the
date of the Merger, again becoming the combined entity of KennedyWilson. The components of equity are the retained earnings and other
equity balances of KWI immediately before the Merger with the capital
share account of KWI adjusted to reflect the par value of the outstanding
shares of Prospect. Assets, liabilities, and results of operations of Prospect
have been consolidated at fair value in accordance with Business
Combinations ASC Subtopic 805-10. All direct costs of the Merger have
been charged to operations in the period that such costs were incurred.
Effective with the Merger, common stockholders of KWI received as
consideration 20.4 million shares of Prospect’s common stock and preferred stockholders of KWI received as consideration 5.6 million shares of
Prospect’s common stock, for an aggregate consideration of 26.0 million
shares of Prospect common stock. In addition, 2.5 million shares of
Prospect common stock were reserved for issuance to employees, nonemployees and management of Kennedy-Wilson pursuant to an equity
compensation plan adopted by Prospect’s board of directors and approved
by Prospect’s stockholders on November 13, 2009. Upon completion of
the Merger, Prospect shareholders were granted 12.8 million shares of the
KWH, with a fair value of $89 million, resulting in 31% ownership in the
combined company Kennedy-Wilson. The net assets received from
Prospect were $89 million of cash, no material liabilities assumed, and no
other identifiable intangible assets. Because the value of the consideration
given to Prospect equals the fair value of the net identifiable assets, no
goodwill was recorded from the Merger.
Merger related costs (in millions) included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31, 2009:
Compensation and related
General and administrative

$12.5
3.6

Total

$16.1

The amount of Prospect revenue and earnings included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for the
year ended December 31, 2009, and the revenue and earnings of the combined entity had the acquisition date been January 1, 2009 and January 1,
2008, are as follows:

Unaudited, in 000’s

Actual Prospect from November 13,
2009–December 31, 2009
Supplemental pro forma from
January 1, 2009–December 31,
2009
Supplemental pro forma from
January 1, 2008–December 31,
2008

Revenue
$

20

Net Income
Attributable to
Kennedy-Wilson
Common
Shareholders
$

Earnings
Per Share

16

$   —

86,295

3,323

0.09

36,034

1,948

0.05

This unaudited pro forma financial information is not intended to represent or be indicative of what would have occurred if the transaction had
taken place on the dates presented and is not indicative of what KennedyWilson’s actual results of operations would have been had the acquisition
been completed at the beginning of the periods indicated above.

Note 4—Notes Receivable
Notes receivable consists of the following:
December 31,

2009

$ 500,000
41,000

   Total notes receivable from third parties

541,000

43,000

805,000

—

1,352,000

—

4,487,000

—

—

3,455,000

Note receivable from a joint venture investment,
fixed interest rate of 9%, principal and
accrued interest due June 2010, secured by
deed of trust
Note receivable from a joint venture investment,
fixed interest rate of 10%, principal and
accrued interest due June 2010, secured by
deed of trust
Note receivable from a joint venture investment,
fixed interest rate of 15%, principal and
accrued interest due June 2010, secured by
deed of trust
Note receivable from the CEO of KennedyWilson, fixed interest rate of 7.5%, principal
and accrued interest due April 2011, unsecured, principal and interest forgiven in 2009
in connection with the Merger
Note receivable, fixed interest rate of 7%, interest only, repaid in 2009, secured by preferred
stock shares that were acquired from the
Kennedy-Wilson
   Total notes receivable from related parties
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2008

Note receivable, fixed interest rate of 10%,
interest only, due December 2010, secured
by personal property
Other

$

—
43,000

—

300,000

6,644,000

3,755,000

$7,185,000

$3,798,000

K enned y - W ilso N H O L D I N G S , I N C . A N D S U B S I D I A R I E S 2 0 0 9  annual report

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
sale resulted in a gain of $564,000, which is included in other income in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. Kennedy-Wilson continues to provide management services to
the property and therefore it is not included in discontinued operations.
Kennedy-Wilson capitalized $219,000 and $519,000 of interest to
investments in real estate for the years ended December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively, related to the residential lot located in Kona, Hawaii
while the lot was being developed for its intended use. In addition to land
costs of $6,667,000, capitalized costs, excluding capital interest, were
$89,000 for 2008. As this project has been developed for its intended use
during 2008, no additional interest has been capitalized during 2009.
During 2007, Kennedy-Wilson purchased and sold an office building
located in Los Angeles, California, realizing income from discontinued
operations of $2,797,000. This was the only property sold in 2007.
Discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2007 were
as follows:

Note 5—Investment in Real Estate
Kennedy-Wilson’s investment in real estate includes the following:
December 31,

Office building in Japan
Residential land in Landcaster and
Victorville, California
House in Kona, Hawaii
204-unit residential apartment complex in
Lompoc, California
Residential land in Kent, Washington

2009

2008

$ 8,375,000

$ 8,428,000

—
8,724,000

7,724,000
8,361,000

25,707,000
845,000

25,637,000
733,000

43,651,000
(3,070,000)

50,883,000
(2,156,000)

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total

$40,581,000

$48,727,000

On June 6, 2009, Kennedy-Wilson acquired a condominium project
located in Los Angeles, California. The project was purchased for the
purposes of resale and was classified as held for sale at the date of acquisition in accordance with reporting real estate as held for sale under ASC
Subtopic 360-10.
During 2008, Kennedy-Wilson sold its interest in an entity that owned
an office building located in Glendora, California for $1,488,000. The

Rental revenue
Rental operating expense
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Gain on sale
Income tax expense

$ 2,931,000
(980,000)
(737,000)
(1,826,000)
5,269,000
(1,860,000)

Total

$ 2,797,000

Note 6—Investments in Joint Ventures
Kennedy-Wilson has a number of joint venture interests, generally ranging from 5% to 15% (but occasionally up to 50%), which were formed to acquire,
manage, develop and/or sell real estate. Kennedy-Wilson has significant influence over these entities, but not voting or other control and accordingly,
these investments are accounted for under the equity method.
Summarized financial data of the joint ventures are as follows:
December 31,

2009
KW
Residential
LLC

Other

Balance sheets for equity method investments:
Assets
Cash
Real estate
Other

$ 28,404,000
548,927,000
16,904,000

Total assets
Liabilities
Debt
Other

2008

Total

KW
Residential
LLC

Other

Total

$ 18,721,000
1,763,600,000
169,622,000

$ 47,125,000
2,312,527,000
186,526,000

$ 26,083,000
582,592,000
18,585,000

$ 25,665,000
1,582,148,000
251,099,000

$ 51,748,000
2,164,740,000
269,684,000

$594,235,000

$1,951,943,000

$2,546,178,000

$627,260,000

$1,858,912,000

$2,486,172,000

$307,877,000
11,618,000

$1,045,862,000
51,234,000

$1,353,739,000
62,852,000

$407,525,000
12,950,000

$1,046,514,000
24,377,000

$1,454,039,000
37,327,000

Total liabilities

319,495,000

1,097,096,000

1,416,591,000

420,475,000

1,070,891,000

1,491,366,000

Partners’ capital
Kennedy-Wilson
Other partners

91,276,000
183,464,000

91,871,000
762,976,000

183,147,000
946,440,000

62,379,000
144,406,000

73,644,000
714,377,000

136,023,000
858,783,000

Total partners’ capital

274,740,000

854,847,000

1,129,587,000

206,785,000

788,021,000

994,806,000

$594,235,000

$1,951,943,000

$2,546,178,000

$627,260,000

$1,858,912,000

$2,486,172,000

Total liabilities and partners’ capital
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Total investments are comprised of the following:
Year Ended December 31,

2009

Equity method
Unrealized gain on fair value option
Cost method
Total investments

KW
Residential
LLC

Other

$91,276,000
—

2008

Total

KW
Residential
LLC

Other

Total

$ 91,871,000
802,000

$183,147,000
802,000

$62,379,000
—

$ 73,644,000
5,856,000

$136,023,000
5,856,000

91,276,000
—

92,673,000
1,303,000

183,949,000
1,303,000

62,379,000
—

79,500,000
309,000

141,879,000
309,000

$91,276,000

$ 93,976,000

$185,252,000

$62,379,000

$ 79,809,000

$142,188,000

Year Ended December 31,

2009

Total

KW
Residential
LLC

Other

Total

$140,119,000
36,221,000
51,764,000
66,228,000

$172,869,000
48,242,000
66,592,000
83,589,000

$28,323,000
5,413,000
12,936,000
14,044,000

$173,146,000
40,155,000
51,689,000
61,969,000

$201,469,000
45,568,000
64,625,000
76,013,000

44,210,000
28,320,000

154,213,000
—

198,423,000
28,320,000

32,393,000
—

153,813,000
—

186,206,000
—

Net (loss) income

$16,860,000

$(14,094,000)

$ 2,766,000

$(4,070,000)

$ 19,333,000

$ 15,263,000

Net income allocation:
Kennedy-Wilson
Other partners

$ 5,949,000
10,911,000

$ 2,070,000
(16,164,000)

$ 8,019,000
(5,253,000)

$ (694,000)
(3,376,000)

$ 4,935,000
14,398,000

$ 4,241,000
11,022,000

Net (loss) income

$16,860,000

$(14,094,000)

$ 2,766,000

$(4,070,000)

$ 19,333,000

$ 15,263,000

Statements of income:
Revenues
Depreciation
Interest
Other expenses
   Total expenses
Gains on extinguishment of debt

KW
Residential
LLC

Other

$32,750,000
12,021,000
14,828,000
17,361,000

2008

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Statements of income:
Revenues
Depreciation
Interest
Other expenses
   Total expenses

KW
Residential
LLC

Other

Total

$17,919,000
1,711,000
6,897,000
9,030,000

$211,520,000
38,713,000
49,083,000
59,596,000

$229,439,000
40,424,000
55,980,000
68,626,000

147,392,000

165,030,000

Net (loss) income

$

17,638,000
281,000

$ 64,128,000

$ 64,409,000

Net income allocation:
Kennedy-Wilson
Other partners

$

646,000
(365,000)

$ 26,787,000
37,341,000

$ 27,433,000
36,976,000

Net (loss) income

$

281,000

$ 64,128,000

$ 64,409,000

Equity in joint venture income:
Year Ended December 31,

Net income allocation
Unrealized gain on fair value option
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2009

2008

2007

$ 7,217,000
802,000

$ 4,241,000
5,856,000

$ 27,433,000
—

$ 8,019,000

$ 10,097,000

$ 27,433,000
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Kennedy-Wilson has determined that as of December 31, 2009 and
2008, it has investments in two variable interest entities and based on its
evaluation under Equity Method Investment ASC Subtopic 323-10 has
concluded that Kennedy-Wilson is not the primary beneficiary. As of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, the variable interest entities had assets
totaling $132 million and $132 million, respectively. As of December 31,
2009 and 2008, Kennedy-Wilson’s exposure to loss as a result of its interests in these variable interest entities was $7.0 million and $7.8 million,
respectively, related to its equity contributions. In addition, KennedyWilson has $14.2 million in the form of loan guarantees that represent
20% of the mortgage loans of the underlying variable interest entities.
Investments in which Kennedy-Wilson does not have significant influence are accounted for under the cost method of accounting. At December
31, 2009 and 2008, Kennedy-Wilson had four investments accounted for
under the cost method with a carrying value totaling $1,303,000 and
$309,000, respectively.
Distributions in excess of Kennedy-Wilson’s basis in investments in
joint ventures totaling $0, $56,000 and $1,694,000 were deferred for the
years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, due to continuing involvement in the real estate sold by the joint venture. Total
deferred revenues and gains on sale of investments in joint ventures
included in accrued expenses and other liabilities were $3,664,000 and
$3,450,000 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Note 7—Fair Value Measurements and the Fair Value Option
Fair Value Measurements—Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC
Subtopic 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the
highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to meas
urements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:
 Level 1—Valuations based on unadjusted quoted market prices in active
markets for identical securities.
 Level 2—Valuations based on observable inputs (other than Level 1
prices), such as quoted prices for similar assets and quoted prices in markets that are not active.
 Level 3—Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement, and involve management
judgment.
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The following table presents fair value measurements (including items that are required to be measured at fair value and items for which the fair
value option has been elected) as of December 31, 2009 classified according to the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC Subtopic 820-10
valuation hierarchy:
Available-for-sale security
Investment in joint ventures

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

$22,000
—

$—
—

$
—
19,590,000

$
22,000
19,590,000

$22,000

$—

$19,590,000

$19,612,000

Unrealized
Appreciation or
(Depreciation)

Net Transfers
In or Out of
Level 3

Total

$—

$19,590,000

The following table presents changes in Level 3 investments for the year ended December 31, 2009:

Investment in joint ventures

December 31,
2008

Net
Purchases
or Sales

Realized
Gains or
Losses

$15,088,000

$1,591,000

$—

$2,911,000

The following table presents fair value measurements (including items that are required to be measured at fair value and items for which the fair
value option has been elected) as of December 31, 2008 classified according to the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ASC Subtopic 820-10
valuation hierarchy:
Available-for-sale security
Investment in joint ventures

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

$28,000

—

$—
—

$
—
 15,088,000

$
28,000
 15,088,000

$28,000

$—

$15,088,000

$15,116,000

Unrealized
Appreciation or
(Depreciation)

Net Transfers
In or Out of
Level 3

Total

$—

$15,088,000

The following table presents changes in Level 3 investments for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Investment in joint ventures

December 31,
2007

Net
Purchases
or Sales

Realized
Gains or
Losses

$22,000

$8,019,000

$—
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Kennedy-Wilson records its investment in the Fund based on the
amount of net assets that would be allocated to its interests in the Fund
assuming the Fund was to liquidate its investments at fair value. The Fund
reports its investments in real estate at fair value based on valuations of the
underlying real estate holdings and indebtedness securing the real estate.
The valuations of real estate were, in part, based on third-party appraisals
and management estimates of the real estate assets using an income
approach. The indebtedness securing the real estate and the investments in
debt securities were valued, in part, based on third-party valuations and
management estimates also using an income approach. Kennedy-Wilson’s
investment balance in the Fund was $7,931,000 and $2,332,000 at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Note 9—Notes Payable
Notes payable were incurred primarily in connection with the acquisition
of joint venture investments and include the following:
December 31,

2009
Note payable, interest payable monthly,
$467,000 monthly principal payments,
variable interest rate at the lender’s base
rate, 4% at December 31, 2009, unsecured,
due August 2014
Note payable, variable interest rate based on
prime repaid in 2009
Note payable, variable interest rate of 8%
plus the greater of 4% or the 1-month
LIBOR rate, secured by the KennedyWilson’s ownership interest in two joint
ventures, repaid in 2009
Loan payable to related party for $4,255,000,
fixed interest rate of 14%, 10% payable
monthly and 4% deferred until repayment
of the loan or maturity, secured by
Kennedy-Wilson’s ownership interest in a
multifamily property, repaid in 2009

Fair Value Option—Kennedy-Wilson has elected the fair value option for
two investments in joint venture entities that were acquired during 2008.
Kennedy-Wilson elected to record these investments at fair value to more
accurately reflect the timing of the value created in the underlying investments and report those results in current operations. The decrease and
increase in fair value for these investments of $802,000 and $5,856,000,
respectively, is recorded in equity in joint venture income in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Kennedy-Wilson determines
the fair value of these investments based upon the income approach, utilizing estimates of future cash flows, discount rates and liquidity risks.

Note 8—Other Assets

December 31,

Office furniture and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Less: Accumulated depreciation and
amortization
Prepaid expenses
Loan fees, net of accumulated amortization
of $1,213,000 and $1,522,000 at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively
Deposits and other, net of accumulated
amortization of $0 and $7,000 at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively

2008

$1,404,000
57,000

$ 1,439,000
57,000

1,461,000

1,496,000

(837,000)

447,000
1,740,000

1,248,000

1,367,000

817,000

656,000

$7,005,000

$ 4,210,000

—

—

5,000,000

—

12,000,000

—

4,188,000

$26,133,000

$21,188,000

Note 10—Borrowings Under Lines of Credit
Kennedy-Wilson has entered into a loan agreement with US Bank and
East-West Bank that provides Kennedy-Wilson with an unsecured revolving credit facility for use in acquisitions and for working capital purposes
in the amount of $30 million. The loan bears interest at a range of rates
from prime to prime plus 0.50%, or, at the borrower’s option, LIBOR plus
2.50% to LIBOR plus 3.00%. During 2009, the average outstanding
borrowings under the line of credit was $19.1 million with the high and
low outstanding balances being $26.0 million and $10.0 million, respectively. During 2008, the average outstanding borrowings under the line of
credit was $3.4 million with the high and low outstanding balances being
$18.5 million and $0, respectively. The borrowings under this loan had
interest rates ranging from 3.25% to 4.50% and 3.75% to 5.50% at
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The principal amount outstanding under this loan was $10.0 million at December 31, 2009 and
$13.5 million at December 31, 2008. The loan matures in June 2011.
Kennedy-Wilson’s ability to borrow under this facility is subject to compliance with certain financial covenants, including maximum balance
sheet leverage and fixed charge coverage ratios. As of December 31, 2009
and 2008, Kennedy-Wilson was in compliance with the covenants.

(1,049,000)

624,000
4,316,000

$

Kennedy-Wilson is required to comply with debt covenants for its borrowings under the $26.1 million outstanding loan amount. The covenants
include a tangible net worth, minimum liquidity, debt service coverage
ratio, and a requirement to be profitable. At December 31, 2009 KennedyWilson was in compliance with all covenants, except the profitability covenant. Kennedy-Wilson obtained a waiver of this covenant for the year
ended December 31, 2009.

Office furniture and equipment and leaseholds improvements are carried
at cost. The office furniture and equipment are depreciated over a period
of three to ten years and the leasehold improvements are amortized over
their estimated useful lives or the lease term, whichever is shorter. Other
assets consist of the following:
2009

$26,133,000

2008

Depreciation and amortization expense related to the above depreciable
assets was $209,000, $256,000, and $695,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
The convertible subordinated note was issued with a beneficial con
version feature as the share price on the commitment date was in excess
of the conversion price. The beneficial conversion feature totaled
$2,528,000 and $2,813,000 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively,
and is being amortized over ten years from issue date using the effective
interest method.

Note 11—Mortgage Loans Payable
December 31,

2009
Mortgage loan payable, fixed interest rate
on initial advance ($18,600,000), 6.16%
at December 31, 2009, variable interest
rate on subsequent advances of 1-month
LIBOR plus 1.25% (1.481% at December
31, 2009) originally due January 2010,
extended to January 2011, secured by
multifamily property
Mortgage loan payable, fixed interest rate of
10%, secured by residential land, repaid
in 2009
Mortgage loan payable, fixed interest rate of
2.175%, interest only with partial principal
repayment, $262,000 repaid in 2008,
$3,555,000 repaid in 2009, balance due
June 2012, secured by office building
Mortgage loan payable, variable interest rate
of prime, 4.00% at December 31, 2009,
interest paid monthly, balance due June
2010, secured by property

2008

Note 13—Junior Subordinated Debentures

$20,740,000

$20,740,000

—

2,025,000

2,778,000

6,333,000

450,000

450,000

$23,968,000

$29,548,000

In 2007, Kennedy-Wilson issued junior subordinated debentures in the
amount of $40 million. The debentures were issued to a trust established
by Kennedy-Wilson, which contemporaneously issued $40 million of trust
preferred securities to Merrill Lynch International. The interest rate on the
debentures is fixed for the first ten years at 9.06%, and variable thereafter
at LIBOR plus 3.70%. Interest is payable quarterly with the principal due
in 2037.
Prior to April 30, 2012, Kennedy-Wilson may redeem the debentures,
upon a Special Event, as defined in the debentures, at a redemption price
equal to 107.5% of the outstanding principal amount. After April 30,
2012, Kennedy-Wilson may redeem the debentures, in whole or in part, on
any interest payment date at par.
Kennedy-Wilson is required to be in compliance with certain financial
covenants, including maximum balance sheet leverage and fixed charge
coverage ratios. As of December 31, 2009, Kennedy-Wilson was in compliance with the covenants.

During 2009, Kennedy-Wilson entered into two mortgage loans payable
totaling $26.1 million that had interest rates of 9% and 15% relating to
the acquisition of 149 units in a condominium project. These two loans
were repaid during 2009 primarily from proceeds of the sale of units in the
condominium project.
The aggregate maturities of mortgage loans payable subsequent to
December 31, 2009 are: $21,190,000 in 2010, $0 in 2011 and $2,778,000
in 2012.

Note 14—Related Party Transactions
In 2009, the firm of Kulik, Gottesman & Mouton Ltd. was paid $366,000
for legal services provided by the firm and $25,000 for director’s fees for
Kent Mouton, a partner in the firm and a member of Kennedy-Wilson’s
Board of Directors, respectively. For 2008, the amounts were $286,000
and $30,000, respectively. For 2007, the amounts were $138,000 and
$28,000, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2009, Mr. Mouton
received a payment of $10,000 upon the termination of the 2009 Equity
Participation Plan. See Note 17.
The firm of Solomon, Winnett & Rosenfield was paid $219,000,
$194,000, and $174,000 for income tax services provided by the firm during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.
Jerry Solomon is a partner in the firm and a member of Kennedy-Wilson’s
Board of Directors. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and
2007, Mr. Solomon was paid director’s fees in the amounts of $22,000,
$29,000, and $29,000, respectively. For the year ended December 31,
2009, Mr. Solomon received a payment of $10,000 upon the termination
of the 2009 Equity Participation Plan. See Note 17.
In October 2009, Kennedy-Wilson entered into a 7-year lease with an
affiliate of a shareholder for their corporate offices in Beverly Hills,
California. The lease commences on January 1, 2010 and at December 31,
2009, future minimum lease consideration payments under this agreement
were $7,462,000.

Note 12—Convertible Subordinated Note
In November 2008, Kennedy-Wilson issued a convertible subordinated
note in the amount of $30 million. The note bears interest at a fixed rate
of 7%. Interest is payable quarterly with the outstanding principal due in
November 2018. The holder of the note may convert the note, in whole or
in part, into common stock of Kennedy-Wilson at a conversion price of
$10.52 per share of common stock at any time prior to the 10th anniversary of the note. At any time on or after the ninth anniversary of the date
of the note and prior to the due date, Kennedy-Wilson may demand that
the holder of the note convert the note in accordance with the terms of the
note. Upon consummation of the merger, the conversion price was
amended to $9.86 per share and the expiration date for the conversion
period was amended to May 3, 2017.
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Kennedy-Wilson received fees and other income from affiliates and
entities in which Kennedy-Wilson holds ownership interests in the fol
lowing amounts:

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate with KennedyWilson’s effective income tax rate is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

Year Ended December 31,

2009

2008

2007

Property management
and leasing fees
Commissions
Sale of real estate

$10,138,000
727,000
6,698,000

$ 8,380,000
4,295,000
—

$10,306,000
8,896,000
—

Total related party revenue

$17,563,000

$12,675,000

$19,202,000

2009
Tax computed at statutory rate
State income taxes, net of
federal benefit
Non-vested stock expense
Capitalized transaction costs
Adjustment to investment basis
Noncontrolling interest
and other

In 2008, Kennedy-Wilson sold its ownership interest in three joint venture investments to a fund in which it also has an ownership interest of
7.64%. The gains recognized on the sale of these three ownership interests
totaled $1,409,000 and are included in equity in income of joint ventures
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. Gains on the sale of the joint venture interests were deferred
in the amount of $56,000 and are included in accrued expenses and other
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.
In 2009, Kennedy-Wilson received reimbursement from KW Residential,
LLC for payroll and consulting services in the amount of $272,619 and
$147,031, respectively. For 2008 and 2007, Kennedy was paid $270,479
and $269,184, respectively, for payroll and $138,891 and $486,277,
respectively, for consulting services.
In 2008, Kennedy-Wilson entered into a note payable in the amount of
$4,255,000 with a joint venture in which it owns a 4.42% interest. The
terms of the note are discussed in Note 9.

(Benefit from) provision for
income taxes

Deferred
Federal
State
Total

2007

$(9,461,000)
228,000

$(2,416,000)
(351,000)

$4,637,000
689,000

(9,233,000)

(2,767,000)

5,326,000

5,987,000
(715,000)

2,905,000
467,000

759,000
159,000

5,272,000

3,372,000

918,000

$ 605,000

$6,244,000

$(3,961,000)

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

2007

$(3,961,000)
—

$ 605,000
—

$4,384,000
1,860,000

$(3,961,000)

$ 605,000

$6,244,000

(681,000)
525,000
528,000
954,000

69,000
375,000
—
—

551,000
384,000
—
—

(657,000)

(253,000)

(164,000)

$(3,961,000)

$ 605,000

$6,244,000

2008

194,000
309,000
1,236,000
294,000
456,000

$ 223,000
—
—
291,000
—

Total deferred tax assets

2,489,000

514,000

Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization
Prepaid expenses and other
Investment basis and reserve differences
Accrued payroll
Unrealized gain on fair value option
Foreign currency translation
Capitalized interest

6,366,000
1,096,000
3,040,000
—
3,639,000
1,472,000
2,315,000

4,738,000
254,000
779,000
138,000
2,364,000
—
1,711,000

17,928,000

9,984,000

$15,439,000

$9,470,000

Net deferred tax liability

$

Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for
future taxable income over the periods which Kennedy-Wilson’s gross
deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely
than not Kennedy-Wilson will realize the benefits of these deductible differences at December 31, 2009 and 2008.
Management has considered the likelihood and significance of possible
penalties associated with its current and intended filing positions and has
determined, based on their assessment, that such penalties, if any, would
not be expected to be material.
Kennedy-Wilson’s federal income tax returns remain open to examination for the tax years 2006 through 2009.

Year Ended December 31,

2008

$5,473,000

2009

Total deferred tax liabilities

The (benefit from) provision for income taxes is allocated as follows:
2009

$ 414,000

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued reserves
Stock option expense
Net operating loss carryforward
Marketable securities
Accrued bonuses

Year Ended December 31,

2008

$(4,630,000)

Year Ended December 31,

The (benefit from) provision for income taxes consists of the following:
2009

2007

The following summarizes the effect of deferred income tax items and
the impact of “temporary differences” between amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and such amounts as measured by
tax laws. Temporary differences and carryforwards which give rise to
deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Note 15—Income Taxes

Current
Federal
State

2008
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(continued)

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Note 16—Commitments and Contingencies

Note 17—Stock Compensation Plans

Future minimum lease payments under scheduled operating leases, net of
minor subleases, that have initial or remaining noncancelable terms in
excess of one year are as follows:

In March 2009, KWI adopted the 2009 Equity Participation Plan (the
Equity Plan) that allowed for the grant of up to 2,852,312 shares of common stock. KWI granted 1,426,156 performance awards and 1,426,156
service awards with an exercise price of $7.89. The performance and service awards were scheduled to vest ratably over a seven-year period with
settlement in shares of common stock of KWI. The option awards would
have expired at the end of ten years. The Equity Plan allowed participants
to settle vested awards with cash, a full recourse note, or net share settlement. Kennedy-Wilson has determined the compensation expense to be
recorded under the Equity Plan using the Black-Scholes-Merton option
pricing model. The option pricing model inputs used to determine the
grant date fair value of $10.3 million were an expected stock option term
of seven years, expected volatility of 43.4%, expected risk free rate of
2.5%, and no expected dividends. In November 2009, the Equity Plan was
cancelled and replaced by another 2009 Equity Participation Plan. Upon
termination of the Equity Plan, the board of directors of KWI approved a
cash payment to option holders totaling $1.5 million.
On November 13, 2009, Kennedy-Wilson adopted the 2009 Equity
Participation Plan (the New Equity Plan) that allows for the grant of up
to approximately 2.5 million shares of common stock. Approximately
2.4 million restricted share awards were granted to employees, which vest
ratably over a five-year period. Vesting of the restricted share awards is
contingent upon the expected achievement of a performance target as of
the initial vesting date of November 13, 2010. Management believes it is
probable that the performance target will be achieved and as a result
recorded compensation costs related to these awards. From inception of
the plan through December 31, 2009 there have been no shares issued to
participants. These restricted share awards are recognized as expense on a
tranche by tranche basis over the five-year performance period.
The cancellation and settlement of the Equity Plan along with the
granting of new awards under the New Equity Plan was determined to be
a plan modification. Therefore the aggregate compensation cost recognized as a result of the modification will be the remaining grant date fair
value of the Equity Plan plus the incremental compensation cost resulting
from the modification. The incremental compensation costs are measured
as the grant date fair value of the restricted stock awards plus the cash paid
to settle the Equity Plan awards less the fair value of the Equity Plan on
the date of modification. Since, on the date of modification, the cumulative compensation cost recognized under the Equity Plan exceeded the
cash paid to settle the award, no additional compensation costs were
recorded as a result of the cash payment and it was recorded as a reduction
to equity. The fair value of the Equity Plan on the date of modification
was determined utilizing the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model.
The option pricing model inputs used were an expected stock option term
of 6.29 years, volatility of 41.9%, risk free interest rate of 2.95%, and no
expected dividends.

Year
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
Thereafter
Total minimum payments
Less: Sublease

Operating Leases
$1,961,000
1,460,000
1,205,000
1,068,000
1,097,000
2,300,000
9,091,000
(196,000)
$8,895,000

Net rental expense amounted to $1,989,000, $1,586,000, and $1,517,000
for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, and
is included in general and administrative expense in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.
Employment Agreements—Kennedy-Wilson has entered into employment
agreements with its Chief Executive Officer and its Co-Chief Executive
Officer of the Commercial Investment Group, which provide for annual
base compensation in the aggregate amounts of $950,000 and $600,000,
respectively, and expire in December 2019 and January 2014, respectively.
The employment agreements provide for the payment of cash bonuses,
in connection with the Merger, in the amounts of $4,850,000 and
$2,000,000, respectively, and were paid in November 2009. Additionally,
the employment agreements provide for cash bonuses of $2,425,000 and
$1,000,000, respectively, to be paid out on April 1, 2010 contingent upon
Kennedy-Wilson achieving certain performance targets as described in the
employment agreement. The employment agreements also provide for the
issuance of 556,875 shares of restricted stock to each officer that vest in
equal amounts over five years provided certain performance targets are
achieved. Also, in connection with the merger, Kennedy-Wilson forgave a
note, including principal and interest, due from its Chief Executive Officer
in the total amount of $4,281,000. Additionally, the employment agreements provide for the payment of an annual discretionary bonus in an
amount determined in the sole and absolute discretion of the Compensation
Committee of the board of directors.
Kennedy-Wilson also has employment agreements with other nonofficer employees which provide for aggregate minimum annual compensation of $1,024,000 which expire in 2010.
Litigation—Kennedy-Wilson is currently a defendant in certain routine
litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. It is the opinion of
management and legal counsel that the outcome of these actions will not
have a material effect on the financial position or results of operations of
Kennedy-Wilson.
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in compensation and related expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss. At December 31, 2009,
2008, and 2007, the amount of non-vested shares deducted from additional paid-in capital was $0, $1,543,000, and $2,558,000, respectively.
During 2009, in connection with the merger, the vesting of the remaining
shares was accelerated and the expense is included in compensation and
related expenses.

As of December 31, 2009, there was $10.7 million of unrecognized
compensation cost for the New Equity Plan related to unvested restricted
shares and $8.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost for the Equity
Plan. The cost for the New Equity Plan is expected to be recognized over
a weighted average period of 2.0 years and the cost for the Equity Plan is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.1 years.
Compensation cost recognized for the year ended December 31, 2009
was $2,314,000 and is included in compensation and related expense in
the accompanying statement of operations and comprehensive loss.
Kennedy-Wilson had the 1992 Incentive and Non-statutory Stock
Option Plan, which included a Plan A and Plan B and the 1992
Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan (Plan C). An aggregate of
6,465,239 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance under Plans
A and B and 308,050 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance
under Plan C.
During the year ended December 31, 2009, the last remaining 55,448
options granted under the Company’s were exercised. During the year
ended December 31, 2008, the last remaining 42,785 options granted
under Plan B of the Company’s 1992 Incentive and Non-statutory Stock
Option Plan (1992 Incentive Plan) were exercised. During the year ended
December 31, 2007, the last remaining 209,170 options granted under
Plan A of the 1992 Incentive Plan were exercised.
The following table sets forth activity under the plans:
Range of
Exercise Prices

Weighted Average
Exercise Price

307,403
(209,170)

$1.00–$2.32
$1.11–$1.14

$1.26
$1.13

Balance,
December 31, 2007
Exercised

98,233
(42,785)

$1.00–$2.32
$2.17

$1.55
$2.17

Balance,
December 31, 2008
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

55,448
2,852,312
(55,448)
(2,852,312)

$1.00–$2.32
$7.89
$1.00–$2.32
$7.89

$1.07
$7.89
$1.07
$7.89

—

—

Options
Outstanding,
January 1, 2007
Exercised

Balance,
December 31, 2009

—

Note 18—Capital Stock Transactions
During 2009, 2008, and 2007, Kennedy-Wilson acquired approximately
443,000, 624,000, and 460,000 shares, respectively, of its common stock
for total consideration of $3,690,000, $6,170,000, and $2,996,000,
respectively.
In 2008, before preferred shares were converted to common shares and
the shares were recast to match the presentation of Prospect in connection
with the Merger, KWI issued 53,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock
(the “preferred stock”). The proceeds from the issuance of the preferred
stock were $52,354,000, net of expenses related to the offering totaling
$646,000. The holders of the preferred stock were entitled to receive dividends quarterly at a per annum rate equal to 7% of the liquidation value of
$1,000 per share. The preferred stock had a conversion price of $42 per
share. In connection with the Merger the preferred stock was converted to
common stock and the conversion price was modified to $36 per share.
The change in conversion price resulted in the issuance of additional
shares to pre-Merger preferred shareholders in the amount of $7,879,000.
In addition, cash dividend payments to pre-Merger preferred shareholders
for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 were $3,235,000 and
$2,264,000, respectively.
Kennedy-Wilson also has 17,750,000 warrants outstanding. The warrants carry an exercise price of $12.50 with an expiration date of November
14, 2013. Kennedy-Wilson may call for redemption of the warrants in
whole and not in part at a price of $0.01 per warrant if the share price of its
common stock equals or exceeds $19.50 per share for any 20 trading days
within a 30-trading-day period ending on the third business day prior to
the notice of redemption to warrant holders, or upon not less than 30 days’
prior written notice of redemption to each warrant holder.

Note 19—Employee Benefit Arrangements
Kennedy-Wilson has a qualified plan under the provisions of Section
401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Under this plan, participants are
able to make salary deferral contributions of up to 15% of their total
compensation, up to a specified maximum. The 401(k) plan also includes
provisions which authorize Kennedy-Wilson to make discretionary contributions. During 2009, 2008, and 2007, Kennedy-Wilson made matching
contributions of $32,000, $6,000, and $100,000, respectively, to this plan
and is included in compensation and related expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

The weighted average grant date fair value for the restricted shares
granted under the New Equity Plan was $9.25. There are no vested or
forfeited shares under the New Equity Plan as of December 31, 2009.
During 2001 and 2002, KWI’s chairman and chief executive officer
was granted a total of 6,465,239 shares of non-vested stock that vest over a
period of eight to ten years. For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008,
and 2007, compensation expense for grants that vested during the years
was $1,543,000, $1,015,000, and $1,015,000, respectively, and is included
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

Note 20—Earnings Per Share
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:
Year Ended December 31,

2009
Basic (loss) income per share attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders:
(Loss) income from continuing operations attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.

2008

2007

$(15,336,000)
—

$

613,000
—

$ 7,915,000
1,478,000

Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.

$(15,336,000)

$

613,000

$ 9,393,000

(Loss) income from continuing operations attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.

$

(0.57)
—

$

0.03
—

$

0.41
0.08

Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.

$

(0.57)

$

0.03

$

0.49

Weighted average shares outstanding for basic (loss) income per share

26,891,304

Diluted (loss) income per share attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders:
(Loss) income from continuing operations attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes, attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.
Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc.

22,892,498

19,258,613

$

(0.57)
—

$

0.03
—

$

0.37
0.07

$

(0.57)

$

0.03

$

0.44

Weighted average shares outstanding for diluted income (loss) per share

26,891,304

24,310,299

21,380,174

Weighted average common shares
Options and warrants
Non-vested stock

26,891,304
—
—

22,892,498
65,583
1,352,218

19,258,613
38,955
2,082,606

Total diluted shares

26,891,304

24,310,299

21,380,174

The dilutive shares from warrants, convertible subordinated debt,
options and non-vested stock have not been included in the diluted
weighted average shares as Kennedy-Wilson has a net loss available to common shareholders. There were a total of 149,857 dilutive securities as of
December 31, 2009, and none in 2008 and 2007.

Investments—With joint venture partners and on its own, Kennedy-Wilson
invests in commercial and residential real estate which Kennedy-Wilson
believes value may be added through company expertise or opportunistic
investing. Kennedy-Wilson’s current real estate portfolio focuses on commercial buildings and multiple-family residences. Kennedy-Wilson also
invests in loan portfolios of various real estate types.
Substantially all of the management fees and commissions—related
party revenues were generated via intersegment activity for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007. The amounts representing investments with related parties and non-affiliates are included in the investments segment. No single external customer provided Kennedy-Wilson
with 10% or more of its revenues during any period presented in these
financial statements.

Note 21—Segment Information
Kennedy-Wilson’s business activities currently consist of services and various types of real estate investments. Kennedy-Wilson’s segment disclosure
with respect to the determination of segment profit or loss and segment
assets is based on these services and its various investments.
Services—Kennedy-Wilson provides a full range of commercial and residential real estate services. These services include property management,
leasing, brokerage, asset management, and various other specialized commercial and residential real estate services.
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The following tables summarize the income and expense activity by segment for the year ended December 31, 2009 and total assets as of
December 31, 2009.
Services

Management fees and commissions
Management fees and commissions—related party
Sale of real estate
Sale of real estate—related party
Rental and other revenue

$ 13,230,000
10,865,000
—
—
—

Investments

$

—
—
52,699,000
6,698,000
2,717,000

$

Corporate

Consolidated

—
—
—
—
26,000

$ 13,230,000
10,865,000
52,699,000
6,698,000
2,743,000

Total revenue
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

24,095,000
21,294,000
70,000

62,114,000
43,491,000
919,000

26,000
28,965,000
133,000

86,235,000
93,750,000
1,122,000

Total operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income

21,364,000
—

44,410,000
8,019,000

29,098,000
—

94,872,000
8,019,000

2,731,000
—
—
—
—

25,723,000
—
—
(5,106,000)
(328,000)

(29,072,000)
102,000
400,000
(8,068,000)
—

(618,000)
102,000
400,000
(13,174,000)
(328,000)

(36,638,000)

(13,618,000)

Total operating income (loss)
Interest income
Interest income—related party
Interest expense
Other than temporary impairment on available for sale security
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes

$ 2,731,000

$ 20,289,000

Benefit from income taxes

3,961,000

Net loss
Total assets

$ 6,635,000

Expenditures for long lived assets

$236,780,000

3,961,000

$(32,677,000)

$ (9,657,000)

$ 92,842,000

$336,257,000

$ 35,800,000

$ 35,800,000

All of the revenues included in the table above are attributable to the United States, except for $483,000 in rental and sales revenue that is attributable
to Japan. This rental and sales revenue was generated from the office building in Japan that had a carrying value of $8,145,000 as of December 31,
2009. The only other activity outside the United States is conducted through Kennedy-Wilson’s equity method investment KW Residential LLC
(See Note 6).
The following tables summarize the income and expense activity by segment for the year ended December 31, 2008 and total assets as of
December 31, 2008.
Services

Management fees and commissions
Management fees and commissions—related party
Rental and other revenue

$ 16,577,000
12,675,000
—

Investments

$

—
—
2,973,000

$

Corporate

Consolidated

—
—
—

$ 16,577,000
12,675,000
2,973,000

Total revenue
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

29,252,000
23,910,000
83,000

2,973,000
2,195,000
683,000

—
5,546,000
154,000

32,225,000
31,651,000
920,000

Total operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income

23,993,000
—

2,878,000
10,097,000

5,700,000
—

32,571,000
10,097,000

5,259,000
—
—
—
—

10,192,000
—
—
(1,974,000)
—

(5,700,000)
221,000
341,000
(6,622,000)
(445,000)

9,751,000
221,000
341,000
(8,596,000)
(445,000)

(12,205,000)

1,272,000

Total operating income (loss)
Interest income
Interest income—related party
Interest expense
Other than temporary impairment on available for sale security
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes

$ 5,259,000

$ 8,218,000

Provision for income taxes

(605,000)

Net income (loss)
Total assets

$ 39,791,000

Expenditures for long lived assets

$175,368,000
$ 41,460,000
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(605,000)

$(12,810,000)

$

$ 40,724,000

$255,883,000

667,000

$ 41,460,000
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
All of the revenues included in the table above are attributable to the United States, except for $198,000 in rental and sales revenue that is attributable
to Japan. This rental and sales revenue was generated from the office building in Japan that had a carrying value of $8,428,000 as of December 31,
2008. The only other activity outside the United States is conducted through Kennedy-Wilson’s equity method investment KW Residential LLC
(See Note 6).
The following tables summarize the income and expense activity by segment for the year ended December 31, 2007 and total assets as of
December 31, 2007.
Services

Management fees and commissions
Management fees and commissions—related party
Rental and other revenue

$14,093,000
19,202,000
—

Investments

$

—
—
98,000

$

Corporate

Consolidated

—
—
—

$ 14,093,000
19,202,000
98,000

Total revenue
Operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization

33,295,000
22,663,000
351,000

98,000
481,000
22,000

—
19,531,000
132,000

33,393,000
42,675,000
505,000

Total operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income

23,014,000
—

503,000
27,433,000

19,663,000
—

43,180,000
27,433,000

Total operating income (loss)
Interest income
Interest income—related party
Interest expense

10,281,000
—
—
—

27,028,000
—
—
(333,000)

(19,663,000)
487,000
378,000
(4,757,000)

17,646,000
487,000
378,000
(5,090,000)

$10,281,000

26,695,000

(23,555,000)

13,421,000

—

(4,384,000)

(4,384,000)

26,695,000
2,797,000

(27,939,000)
—

9,037,000
2,797,000

$29,492,000

$(27,939,000)

$ 11,834,000

$66,552,000

$ 34,209,000

$145,814,000

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net income (loss)
Total assets

$45,053,000

Expenditures for long lived assets

$38,458,000

$ 38,458,000

Note 22—Unaudited Quarterly Information
Year Ended December 31, 2009

First
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

$ 6,817,000
8,660,000
(269,000)

$41,021,000
32,687,000
893,000

$ 25,914,000
41,583,000
7,587,000

349,000
2,461,000

(2,112,000)
2,741,000

9,227,000
5,611,000

(8,082,000)
2,187,000

(Loss) income before provision for income taxes
Benefit from (provision for) income taxes

(2,112,000)
653,000

(4,853,000)
1,562,000

3,616,000
(251,000)

(10,269,000)
1,997,000

Net (loss) income
Loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests

(1,459,000)
57,000

(3,291,000)
210,000

3,365,000
(3,325,000)

(8,272,000)
(2,621,000)

Revenues
Operating expenses
Equity in joint venture (loss) income

$12,483,000
11,942,000
(192,000)

Operating income (loss)
Non-operating expenses

Second
Quarter

Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders

$(1,402,000)

$(3,081,000)

$

40,000

Basic (loss) earnings per share
Diluted (loss) earnings per share

$

$

$

—
—
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(0.06)
(0.06)

(0.12)
(0.12)

$(10,893,000)
$

(0.34)
(0.34)
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Year Ended December 31, 2008

Revenues
Operating expenses
Equity in joint venture income
Operating income
Non-operating expenses

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

$6,601,000
6,357,000
1,317,000

$9,906,000
8,366,000
216,000

$8,158,000
7,995,000
4,130,000

$ 7,560,000
9,853,000
4,434,000

1,561,000
1,163,000

1,756,000
1,732,000

4,293,000
2,254,000

2,141,000
3,330,000

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes
(Provision for) benefit from income taxes
Net income (loss)
Loss (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests

398,000
(177,000)

24,000
(11,000)

2,039,000
(738,000)

(1,189,000)
321,000

221,000
47,000

13,000
(97,000)

1,301,000
(91,000)

(868,000)
87,000

Net (loss) income attributable to Kennedy-Wilson Holdings, Inc. shareholders

$ 268,000

$ (84,000)

$1,210,000

$ (781,000)

Basic earnings (loss) per share
Diluted earnings (loss) per share

$

$

$

$

0.01
0.01

—
—

0.05
0.05

(0.03)
(0.03)

In February 2010, Kennedy-Wilson, in partnership with Deutsche
Bank, acquired a loan portfolio totaling approximately $342 million in
unpaid principal balance. The loan portfolio, which was acquired from a
large regional bank, is comprised of residential, hotel, retail, office, land,
multifamily and other assets predominantly located in Southern
California, where Kennedy-Wilson is headquartered.

Note 23—Subsequent Events
In February 2010, the due date of the mortgage loan payable on a residential apartment complex in Lompoc, California was extended to January
2011. The principal balance of the loan was paid down by $3,151,000 and
the interest rate remained unchanged at LIBOR plus 1.25%.
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Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total return of our common stock from December 3, 2007, the date that our common stock first became
tradable separately, through December 31, 2009, with the comparable cumulative return of companies comprising the S&P 500 Index and a peer issuer
selected by us. The peer issuer is a company in the real estate services and investment industry. As a result, the performance of our common stock relative
to the performance of the common stock of the peer issuer prior to November 13, 2009, may not be representative of future results. The graph plots the
growth in value of an initial investment of $100 in each of our common stock, the S&P 500 Index and a peer issuer selected by us over the indicated time
periods, and assumes reinvestment of all dividends, if any, paid on the securities. We have not paid any cash dividends and, therefore, the cumulative total
return calculation for us is based solely upon stock price appreciation and not upon reinvestment of cash dividends. The stock price performance shown
Stock Performance Graph
on the graph is not necessarily
indicative of future price performance.
(in dollars)
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Note: The peer, CB Richard Ellis, is comparable beginning November 13, 2009.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Company and Affiliated Purchasers in the Fourth Quarter of 2009

Period
November 1 to November 30

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
10,966,171(1)

Average Price
Paid per Share
$9.95(2)

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans
or Programs

Maximum Number (or
Approximate Dollar Value)
of Shares that May Yet Be
Purchased Under the Plans
or Programs

10,276,571

$—

(1) Includes: (a) 9,492,397 shares of common stock purchased by us as publicly announced by us on November 11 and 12, 2009; (b) 784,174 shares of common stock purchased
by Victory Park Capital Advisors, LLC for prices not to exceed $0.04 per share above the market price as publicly announced by us on November 11, 2009; (c) 134,600 shares of
common stock purchased by certain of our former officers, directors and sponsors in open market transactions; and (d) 555,000 shares of common stock purchased by certain of our
current officers and directors in open market transactions.
(2) E xcludes open market transactions made by Victory Park Capital Advisors, LLC and our current and former affiliates.
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Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder
Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Our warrants and common stock have traded on NYSE AMEX since
December 3, 2007 under the symbol “KWIC.” Our common stock has
been approved for listing on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol “KW” and we expect that our common stock will commence
trading on the New York Stock Exchange on or about March 19, 2010.
Our warrants currently do not have a sufficient number of warrantholders
to meet applicable continued listing requirements and are expected to be
quoted on the Pink Sheets following the delisting from the NYSE AMEX
so long as market makers demonstrate an interest in trading in our
warrants. No assurance can be given that the market makers will continue
to make a market in our warrants. Each warrant entitles the holder to
purchase one share of its common stock at an exercise price of $12.50. Our
warrants will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on November 14,
2013, or earlier upon redemption.
The following table sets forth, for the calendar quarter indicated, the
high and low closing sales prices per warrant and share of common stock,
respectively, as reported on NYSE AMEX. The quotations listed below
reflect interdealer prices, without retail markup, markdown or commission
and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.
Warrants
Quarter Ended

Holders
As of March 10, 2010, we had 43 holders of record of our common stock
and six holders of record of our warrants.

Dividends
We have not paid any dividends on our common stock to date. The payment of any dividends is within the discretion of our board of directors.
It is the present intention of our board of directors to retain all earnings,
if any, for use in our business operations and, accordingly, our board
of directors currently does not anticipate declaring any dividends in the
foreseeable future.

Common Stock

High

Low

High

Low

$0.07
$0.17
$0.63
$1.05

$0.03
$0.03
$0.06
$0.45

$ 9.46
$ 9.67
$ 9.94
$10.25

$9.20
$9.49
$9.67
$8.85

$0.85
$0.45
$0.41
$0.25

$0.38
$0.30
$0.20
$0.05

$ 9.20
$ 9.31
$ 9.50
$ 9.15

$8.97
$9.05
$9.01
$8.56

2009
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

2008
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter
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Forward-Looking Statements

are outside of our control, and involve known and unknown risks and
uncertainties that could cause our actual results, performance or achievement, or industry results, to differ materially from any future results, performance or achievements, expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. We discuss such risks, uncertainties and other factors throughout our filings with the SEC. Any such forward-looking statements,
whether made in this report or elsewhere, should be considered in the context of the various disclosures made by us about our businesses including,
without limitation, the risk factors contained in our filings with the SEC.
Except as required under the federal securities laws and the rules and
regulations of the SEC, we do not have any intention or obligation to
update publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events, changes in assumptions, or otherwise.

Statements made by us in this report and in other reports and statements
released by us that are not historical facts constitute “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) and Section 21 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). These forwardlooking statements are necessarily estimates reflecting the judgment of our
senior management based on our current estimates, expectations, forecasts
and projections and include comments that express our current opinions
about trends and factors that may impact future operating results.
Disclosures that use words such as “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,”
“intend,” “could,” “plan,” “expect,” “project” or the negative of these, as
well as similar expressions, are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance, rely
on a number of assumptions concerning future events, many of which
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